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Corporate Profile
Lai Sun Hotels International Limited is a member of the Lai Sun Group. Prior
to the formation of the Company, Glynhill International Limited, a company
first listed on the Hong Kong stock exchange in 1973, was the holding
company for the hotel interests of the Lai Sun Group. Following a
reorganisation by way of a scheme of arrangement in November 1996, the
Company became the new listed holding company, replacing Glynhill
International Limited. The Company has interests in hotel properties in Hong
Kong, Asia and North America as well as interests in hotel management
groups with activities throughout Asia.
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Results
The Group reported a consolidated net loss attributable to shareholders of
HK$49,802,000 for the year ended 31st December, 1998 as compared to the
net profit of HK$110,148,000 for 1997. Loss per share was 2.73 Hong Kong
cents against earnings per share of 7.79 Hong Kong cents for 1997.

Dividends
As the Directors do not recommend a final dividend, total payout for the year
equates to 1.0 Hong Kong cent per share which was distributed as an interim
dividend in November 1998.

Business Review
Turnover for 1998 declined by 8.9% from HK$405,094,000 to
HK$369,221,000. The fall was primarily attributed to the reduced
management fee income from the Group’s Asian hotel management arm,
Century International Hotels, and the reduced revenue contribution from the
Ritz-Carlton Hong Kong, in which the Group has a 65% attributable interest.

Consequently, an operating loss of HK$23,940,000 for 1998 was recorded as
compared to an operating profit of HK$85,134,000 for the preceding year.
Earnings were further weighed down by the exceptional loss of
HK$143,314,000 posted for the year under review. The exceptional items
comprised primarily of various non-recurring provisions including those
made against the carrying value of the residential project under development

LAM Kin Ngok, Peter
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in Vancouver, Canada, the deficit arising from the revaluation of the
Hong Kong Plaza in Shanghai, China and the anticipated loss on
disposal of Century International Hotels.

On the other hand, improved earnings recorded at the Four Seasons
Hotel, New York and the Regent Beverly Wilshire Hotel lifted
attributable profits from associated companies by 10.9% from
HK$95,705,000 for the preceding year to HK$106,123,000, thereby
reducing the net loss attributable to shareholders to HK$49,802,000
for 1998.

OWNERSHIP OF HOTELS

The Ritz-Carlton Hong Kong, Hong Kong
The local hotel industry experienced a difficult year in 1998 as
intra-regional travel was severely curtailed by the continuing
recession in most Asian countries which witnessed currency
weakness and volatility. Whilst regional hotel occupancies and

left The Ritz-Carlton Hong

Kong and Furama Hotel,

Hong Kong
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average room rates softened considerably due to the reduction in the
corporate market segment, the performance of the Ritz-Carlton Hong Kong
presented no exception. Contributions from the hotel were reduced, with
average occupancy for the year down to 58.9% as compared with 69.2% of
the preceding year. In view of the intense price undercutting of the local hotel
industry as a whole, average room rate also registered a decline by 31.5%
from HK$2,140 to HK$1,465.

Visitor arrivals in Hong Kong, which have shown signs of stabilization
towards the last quarter of 1998, continue to hold up in the first quarter of
1999. Although there will still be downward pressure on room rates in 1999,
they appear to be bottoming out. Accordingly, average room rate of the hotel
for March 1999 improved to HK$1,519 with occupancy climbing back to an
encouraging level of 77.3% .
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Four Seasons Hotel, New York
The 370-room hotel located in the prime shopping area of Manhattan, New
York, continued its spectacular growth in operating performance for 1998
with average room rate peaking at US$589 (US$537 in 1997) and at the same
time increasing its occupancy to 80.9% (78.8% in 1997).

To capitalize on the significant appreciation of this asset, the Group together
with other members of the owning consortium decided to realize the gain of
this investment. A sale and purchase agreement was signed on 2nd February,
1999 with due completion taken place on 12th March, 1999. The disposal
generated an attributable profit of approximately HK$266 million for the
Group whilst channeling substantial liquidity of HK$1,066 million back to
Hong Kong. The profit on disposal will be accounted for in the financial year
ending 31st December, 1999.

Regent Beverly Wilshire Hotel, Los Angeles
During the year, the renovation project which adds an additional 117 rooms
and suites to the existing hotel was substantially completed in October 1998.
Despite the renovation taking place during the year, the hotel was able to
improve average room rate from US$317 to US$330 with occupancy standing
steadily above 70% (70.3% for 1998 and 74.7% for 1997). It is expected that
upon relaunching of the newly renovated product in 1999, significant
incremental revenues can be generated from the additional rooms without a
proportional increase in operating costs due to efficiency of scale.

left The Ritz-Carlton

Hong Kong

below right Regent

Beverly Wilshire Hotel,

Los Angeles
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Four Seasons Hotel, Milan
As stated in the interim report for the first six months ended 30th June,
1998, the Group successfully disposed of its 50% interest in the hotel in July,
1998 for a total attributable cash consideration of US$30.5 million. The cash
proceeds were received during the year under review.

Delta Whistler Resort, Whistler
In view of the mounting popularity of the Whistler BlackComb area as a ski
resort, the Delta Whistler Resort was able to report another year of
satisfactory operating results amidst intense competition from the substantial
new room supply added in the area. Occupancy remained steady at 70.4%
(69.2% for 1997) with average room rate at C$156 (C$159 for 1997).

Delta Caravelle Hotel, Ho Chi Minh City
This 26%-owned new hotel in Ho Chi Minh City, which offers 335 deluxe
guestrooms and suites, commenced operations in May 1998. Opening was in
stages and all rooms have been put to use as of year end date. Although the
hotel is in its start-up stage, it has become the landmark hotel in Ho Chi
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Minh City and has been able to command the highest room rate since its
inception. It is expected that the hotel will be able to contribute positive
earnings in the medium term.

Furama Resort, Danang
The Group acquired an effective 31.25% interest in the Furama Resort,
Danang , a 198-room resort hotel in Vietnam, in June 1998 for an aggregate
consideration of HK$105 million. Average room rate for 1998 was US$89
with occupancy at 39.6%. Although contribution from this associated
company for the year under review was relatively immaterial, the acquisition
of a second hotel in Vietnam created significant synergy in terms of both
marketing and management of the Group’s hotel investment in the country.

OWNERSHIP OF SERVICED APARTMENTS/PROPERTY

Hong Kong Plaza, Shanghai
The Group’s investment in the 181 luxury quality serviced apartments in
Hong Kong Plaza, Shanghai continued to generate a steady stream of
recurrent cash inflow. Construction of the project was completed with
occupation permit issued in June 1998. Pursuant to the acquisition
agreement, the Company would enjoy a guaranteed yield of 13% per annum
up to September 2000.

far left Delta Caravelle Hotel, Ho Chi Minh City

left Delta Whistler Resort, Whistler

right  Hong Kong Plaza, Shanghai

below Furama Resort, Danang
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However, in line with the Group’s discipline of financial prudence, the
management decided to write down the value of the property based on a
recent valuation report conducted by an independent valuer, resulting in a
provision of approximately HK$28 million.

The Lions, Vancouver
Construction of the twin tower residential/commercial complex named “The
Lions” in Vancouver is progressing smoothly on schedule with substantial
completion expected in June 1999. In view of the general decline of the
residential property market in Vancouver and for prudence sake, a provision of
approximately HK$52 million was made against the remaining unsold units.
Albeit the lower price, the management has received inquires from various
interested buyers regarding the bulk sale of the remaining units. It is expected
that the project would be completely sold out by the end of 1999, thus
enabling the Company to repatriate substantial liquidity back to Hong Kong.
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HOTEL MANAGEMENT

Century International Hotels, Asia Pacific
The Century International Hotels (“CIH”), which is the Group’s 51%-owned
hotel management arm operating primarily in Asia, was inevitably impacted
by the depressed regional travel and tourism following the economic turmoil
in Asia. As a swift turnaround of the hospitality industry in the region is not
likely in the foreseeable future, the Group decided to sell its interest to the
original founders of CIH in order to avoid the continual drag on earnings.
Although completion of the transaction took place in February 1999, full
provision for the loss on disposal amounting to HK$23 million has already
been incorporated in the 1998 accounts.

Subsequent Events
In February 1999, the Group entered into a conditional agreement with Lai
Sun Development Company Limited and its indirect wholly-owned

far left The Lions, Vancouver

left Furama Hotel, Hong Kong
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subsidiary, Furama Hotel Enterprises Limited, in relation to the
redevelopment of the Furama Hotel into a composite retail, hotel and office
building. Pursuant to the agreement, the Group would purchase the hotel
portions comprising 198 hotel rooms, a lobby area, retail shopping arcade
and 32 car parking spaces for a total consideration of HK$1,900 million.
Completion of the redevelopment is expected to be in 2004. It is intended
that an airbridge will be built to connect the New Building to the Ritz-Carlton
Hong Kong located on the adjacent property. The acquisition constituted a
major and connected transaction of the Company and required approval from
independent shareholders. Such approval was obtained pursuant to a
resolution passed in a special general meeting held on 22nd March, 1999.

The Group believes that subject to reaching an agreement with the owners of
the Ritz-Carlton Hong Kong, the integration and joint operation of the Hotel
Portions with the Ritz-Carlton Hong Kong will create synergies and
efficiencies of scale, thereby increasing the value of its existing investment in
the international five-star luxury hotels in Central district, Hong Kong. The
acquisition therefore represents a unique investment opportunity for the
Group to secure a hotel in an unrivalled location in the primary business
centre and to position itself to capture any revival of the hotel industry and
the economy of Hong Kong in the coming years.

Prospects
The year 1998 witnessed a continuation of the financial turmoil in the region
with Hong Kong sliding into a cycle of negative growth and deflation. The
severe contraction of the Asian economies has inevitably taken a heavy toll on
the hospitality market in the region and it is unlikely that the local operating
environment will improve significantly in 1999. However, with the active
policy initiatives by the Hong Kong government, the announcement of the
Cyberport project and the possibility of the construction of the Disneyland
theme park, the outlook for Hong Kong tourism is positive in the medium to
long term. The Group’s strategy against such macro economic factors will be
to pursue a policy of prudent and focused growth in Hong Kong.

On the other hand, in view of the continuous robust North American
economy, the Group is embarking on a divestment program to realize the
capital appreciation of the overseas assets. Such divestiture will enable the
Group to maintain the required financial flexibility not only to weather
unforeseen future economic upheavals but also to capture any attractive
investment opportunities that may arise.
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Finally, I would like to take this opportunity to thank the shareholders for
their continued support and my fellow Board members as well as the staff
members for their invaluable contribution during the year.

LAM Kin Ngok, Peter Chairman

Hong Kong
29th April, 1999
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report and the audited financial statements of the Company

and its subsidiaries (the `̀ Group'') for the year ended 31st December, 1998.

P R I N C I P A L A C T I V I T I E S

The principal activities of the Company and the Group have not changed over the year.

The principal activity of the Company during the year was investment holding.

The principal activities of the Group consisted of investments in, and the management of, hotel and

restaurant operations and property investments.

S E G M E N T E D I N F O R M A T I O N

An analysis of the turnover and contribution to the operating loss before exceptional items of the Group by

principal activity and geographical area for the year ended 31st December, 1998 is as follows:

Turnover Contribution

HK$'000 HK$'000

By activity:

Hotel and restaurant operations 318,999 8,790

Hotel management fee income 34,169 (10,649)

Guaranteed rental income on investment properties 16,053 12,476

Others Ð 13,259

369,221 23,876

Unallocated general and administrative expenses, net of other income (33,477)

Interest expense, net of compensation received and receivable from Lai

Sun Development Company Limited (`̀ LSD'') (14,339)

(23,940)

By geographical area:
The People's Republic of China:

Hong Kong 214,357 (11,681)

Other areas 16,152 49,659

Canada 87,352 3,042

United States of America 5,072 38

Others 46,288 (17,182)

369,221 23,876

Unallocated general and administrative expenses, net of other income (33,477)

Interest expense, net of compensation received and receivable

from LSD (14,339)

(23,940)
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R E S U L T S A N D D I V I D E N D S

Details of the results of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 1998 and the state of affairs of the

Company and of the Group at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 34 to 72.

An interim dividend of 1.0 Hong Kong cent per ordinary share was paid on 6th November, 1998 (1997 : 1.0

Hong Kong cent).

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend in respect of the year ended 31st

December, 1998. For the year 1997, a final dividend of 1.5 Hong Kong cents per ordinary share was paid.

The Directors recommend that the retained earnings of the Group as at 31st December, 1998 be carried

forward.

D I R E C T O R S

The Directors of the Company who were in office during the year and those as at the date of this report are

as follows:

LAM Kin Ngok, Peter (Chairman)

LIM Por Yen

LAM Kin Ming

LIU Ngai Wing (appointed on 1st November, 1998)

Victor YANG

CHEUNG Wing Sum, Ambrose

U Po Chu

SHIU Kai Wah

CHIU Wai

LAM Ka Chung, William

DONG Jiufeng (appointed on 19th March, 1999)

WONG Tin Yau, Kelvin

Alfred Donald YAP*

LIEN Jown Jing, Vincent* (appointed on 5th August, 1998)

YEUNG Sui Sang (resigned on 8th June, 1998)

Brian DEESON (resigned on 3rd February, 1999)

Vichai SRISUTHAPAN (resigned on 3rd February, 1999)

ZHANG Dachun (resigned on 19th March, 1999)

* Independent non-executive directors

** Surname in capital letters

The Directors would like to record a vote of thanks to Messrs. Brian DEESON, Vichai SRISUTHAPAN,

YEUNG Sui Sang and ZHANG Dachun for their valuable services and past contributions made to the

Company during their tenure of office.

In accordance with Bye-law 86(2) of the Company's Bye-laws, Messrs. LIEN Jown Jing, Vincent, LIU Ngai

Wing and DONG Jiufeng retire at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-election.

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Company's Bye-laws, Messrs. LIM Por Yen, SHIU Kai Wah and Madam

U Po Chu retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves

for re-election.

Report of the Directors
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D I R E C T O R S ' S E R V I C E C O N T R A C T S

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting has an unexpired

service contract with the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the employing

company within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

D I R E C T O R S ' I N T E R E S T S I N C O N T R A C T S

(a) Pursuant to an agreement entered into by Lai Sun Hotels (B.V.I.) Limited, Lai Sun Development

Company Limited (``LSD''), Grand Hill Holdings Limited, LAM Kin Ngok, Peter and Glynhill

International Limited (`̀ GIL'') in respect of the acquisition of Heathfield Limited, LSD and LAM Kin

Ngok, Peter have given an indemnity to the Group against all liabilities, losses, proceedings and claims

arising from, or in consequence of, the litigation concerning the interest purchased.

(b) An agreement was entered into by Transtrend Canada Limited, LAM Kin Ngok, Peter, RH Corporation,

Realstar Hotel Holdings Inc., Jonas PRINCE, Wayne SQUIBB, Delta Hotels Limited (`̀ DHL'') and Lai

Sun Holdings BV, which constituted a unanimous shareholders' agreement within the meaning of the

Business Corporation Act, 1982 (Ontario). This agreement set out the consent of the above-mentioned

parties with respect to the management of the business and affairs of DHL. The agreement was

terminated upon the disposal of DHL on 7th March, 1998.

(c) An agreement was entered into by GIL, LAM Kin Ngok, Peter, RH International Corporation, Jonas

PRINCE, Wayne SQUIBB and Delta Asia Limited (`̀ DAL'') which constituted a unanimous

shareholders' agreement. This agreement set out the consent of the above-mentioned parties with

respect to the management of the business and affairs of DAL. The agreement was terminated upon the

disposal of DHL on 7th March, 1998.

(d) A hotel management contract was entered into between a subsidiary of DAL, Delta Hotels Management

(Thailand) Limited and P.S. Development Group of Companies Ltd (`̀ PSD''), an associated company of

LSD. This agreement sets out the management services provided to a hotel owned by PSD in Bangkok.

(e) A royalty agreement was entered into between a subsidiary of DAL, Toplink Profits Limited (`̀ TPL'')

and PSD. This agreement sets out the right to enable a hotel owned by PSD in Bangkok to use the name

`̀ DELTA'', being the tradename and trademark in its hotel operations.

(f) A central marketing and promotional services agreement was entered into between DAL and PSD. This

agreement sets out the marketing and promotional services provided to a hotel owned by PSD in

Bangkok.

(g) A management agreement was entered into on 1st July, 1993 between a subsidiary of the Group,

Glynhill International Hotels Management Sdn Bhd and Pengkalen Holiday Resort Sdn Bhd (`̀ PHR''), a

company in which LSD has a 10% interest. The agreement sets out the management services provided

to a hotel owned by PHR in Malaysia.

(h) A royalty agreement was set up on 1st July, 1993 between a subsidiary of the Group, Dixieland

International Limited, and PHR which sets out the rights for a hotel owned by PHR in Malaysia to use

the `̀ DELTA'' tradename and trademark in its hotel operations.

LAI SUN HOTELS ANNUAL REPORT 1998
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D I R E C T O R S ' I N T E R E S T S I N C O N T R A C T S ( c o n t i n u e d )

(i) In connection with a hotel in the Philippines (the `̀ Hotel'') owned by Philippine Dream Company, Inc.

(`̀ PDC''), an associated company of LSD, a number of agreements were set up by PDC on 8th

December, 1995 :

(1) A management agreement was entered into with Delta Hotels & Resorts Asia Pacific Pte Limited

(`̀ DHR''), a subsidiary of DAL, for management services provided to the Hotel.

Under the agreement, DHR receives management fees based on a percentage of the gross

operating profit of the Hotel and the reimbursement of costs and expenses incurred in the

provision of such services. The management agreement has an initial term of five years and may

be extended for three additional terms of five years at DHR's option.

(2) An offshore agreement was entered into with DAL for marketing and advisory services provided

to the Hotel. DAL is entitled to service fees based on a percentage of the gross revenue and gross

room revenue of the Hotel and the reimbursement of costs and expenses incurred in the

provision of such services. The agreement has an initial term of 10 years and may be extended at

DAL's option for an additional term of 10 years.

(3) A licensing agreement was entered into with TPL for the Hotel to have the right to use the name

``DELTA'', being the tradename and trademark in its hotel operations.

The licensing agreement has no fixed term, but will cease to be in force upon the termination of

the abovementioned management agreement.

There is no consideration given for the use of the trademark and tradenames.

The above agreements were approved by the government of the Philippines on 16th February, 1996.

Each subsequent extension of these agreements is subject to government approval.

(j) Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement (the `̀ Agreement'') dated 5th March, 1997 entered into

between the Group through a wholly-owned subsidiary, Good Strategy Limited, and Tiger Hill Limited

(`̀ Tiger Hill''), a subsidiary of LSD, the Group has agreed to acquire, and Tiger Hill has agreed, inter

alia, to procure Shanghai Li Xing Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (`̀ Li Xing''), a subsidiary of LSD

and a fellow subsidiary of the Group, to enter into pre-sale agreements between the Group and Li Xing

for the sale of 181 serviced apartment units at the North Tower of the Hong Kong Plaza (the `̀ Hong

Kong Plaza Properties''), properties situated in Shanghai, the PRC, at a total consideration of

approximately HK$479,919,000. The consideration was increased by approximately HK$13 million as

a result of the variances in gross floor area in accordance with the Agreement.

In addition, Li Xing has granted to the Group a guaranteed rental return of 13%, calculated based on

the sale consideration, effective for two years commencing in the fourth calendar month immediately

following the month in which notice of occupation of Hong Kong Plaza Properties is issued by Li Xing

to the Group (the ``Rental Guarantee Date''). Tiger Hill has also agreed to pay to the Group an amount

equivalent to 13% per annum on the consideration paid pursuant to the Agreement from the date next

after the completion date of the Agreement up to and exclusive of the Rental Guarantee Date. Such

notice of occupation was issued in June 1998. Guaranteed rental returns received and receivable from

Li Xing for the year ended 31st December, 1998 were HK$16,053,000 (1997 : Nil). Guaranteed

returns received from Tiger Hill for the year ended 31st December, 1998 were HK$46,792,000 (1997 :

HK$46,272,000).

Report of the Directors
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D I R E C T O R S ' I N T E R E S T S I N C O N T R A C T S ( c o n t i n u e d )

(k) In March 1997, the Group acquired certain subsidiaries (the `̀ Subsidiaries'') and certain associated

companies (the `̀ Associated Companies'') from LSD. Under the terms of the acquisition, by including

HK$1,018,155,000 in the consideration for the acquisitions, LSD agreed to reimburse the Group the

principal payments of the bank loans of the Subsidiaries and the Associated Companies attributable to

the Group (the `̀ Relevant Loans'') of the same amount. In addition, LSD agreed to compensate the

Group for interest made on the Relevant Loans as incurred. It has also been agreed that the guarantees

given by LSD to the relevant lenders under the respective loan facilities be continued to be assumed by

LSD for so long as such facilities remain outstanding.

Due from LSD of HK$382,377,000 at 31st December, 1998 (1997 : HK$382,690,000) comprised the

principal portion of the Relevant Loans of the Subsidiaries of HK$382,084,000 (1997 :

HK$382,208,000) and compensation receivable on the related loan interest charge of HK$293,000

(1997 : HK$482,000). Associated companies' borrowings borne by LSD at 31st December, 1998 of

HK$589,296,000 (1997 : HK$591,988,000) comprised the principal portion of the Relevant Loans of

the Associated Companies of HK$582,571,000 (1997 : HK$584,733,000) and compensation

receivable on the related loan interest charge of HK$6,725,000 (1997 : HK$7,255,000).

Compensations received and receivable during the year in respect of the Relevant Loans of the

Subsidiaries and the Associated Companies were HK$29,893,000 (1997 : HK$25,473,000) and

HK$44,276,000 (1997 : HK$34,358,000), respectively.

Mr. LIM Por Yen, Mr. LAM Kin Ngok, Peter, Mr. LAM Kin Ming, Madam U Po Chu and Mr. CHIU Wai were

deemed to be interested in the contracts mentioned in (a) to (k) by virtue of their interests described under

paragraph (b) of the section ``Directors' interests in securities or debentures'' on pages 24±25.

Mr. CHEUNG Wing Sum, Ambrose is a consultant with Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo which provides legal services

to the Group and receives normal professional fees for such services.

Mr. Victor YANG is a partner of Boughton Peterson Yang Anderson which provides legal services to the

Group and receives normal professional fees for such services.

In the opinion of the Directors, the above transactions arose in the ordinary course of business and were

conducted on normal commercial terms.

Except for the above, no Director had a material interest in any contract of significance to which the

Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

LAI SUN HOTELS ANNUAL REPORT 1998
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C O N N E C T E D T R A N S A C T I O N S

(a) The agreement dated 5th March, 1997 regarding the Hong Kong Plaza Properties as described under

paragraph (j) of the section `̀ Director's interest in contracts'' constituted connected transaction for the

Company under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (`̀ Listing Rules'') on The Stock Exchange

of Hong Kong Limited in view of the following interest of LSD and the shareholdings of the LIM

Family in the Company and LSD.

As at 5th March, 1997, Mr. LIM Por Yen, Mr. LAM Kin Ngok, Peter and Mr. LAM Kin Ming and their

respective associates (together the ``LIM Family'') as defined under the Listing Rules, owned

approximately 46.89% of the issued share capital of Lai Sun Garment (International) Limited (`̀ LSGI'').

LSGI in turn owned approximately 38.86% of the issued share capital of LSD, and LSD in turn owned

approximately 54.09% of the issued share capital of the Company. The LIM Family also directly

owned approximately 12.23% of LSD and 7.43% of the Company.

(b) On 17th June, 1998, Furama Hotel Enterprises Limited (`̀ Furama''), an indirect wholly-owned

subsidiary of LSD, and the Company entered into a conditional sale and purchase agreement (the

`̀ Acquisition Agreement'') pursuant to which the Company agreed to acquire from Furama:

(i) 49.9% equity interest in Furama International Hoteliers Limited (``Furama BVI''), which was then

a wholly-owned subsidiary of Furama; and

(ii) 49.9% of the shareholder's loan owing by Furama BVI to Furama at the date of completion of the

Acquisition Agreement

together the `̀ Acquisition'', for an aggregate consideration of HK$105,000,000. The transaction was

completed on 22nd June, 1998.

As at 17th June, 1998, the LIM Family owned approximately 46.7% of the issued share capital of LSGI,

the ultimate holding company of the Company, which in turn owned approximately 41.7% of the

issued share capital of LSD. LSD in turn owned approximately 52.2% of the issued share capital of the

Company and, through a wholly-owned subsidiary, 100% of Furama. The LIM Family also directly

owned approximately 9.9% of LSD and 0.9% of the Company. In view of the interest of LSD in the

Acquisition and the shareholdings of the LIM Family in LSD and the Company, the Acquisition

constituted a connected transaction of LSD and the Company.

(c) On 3rd February, 1999, GIL, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, had entered into a

conditional sale and purchase agreement (the ``Agreement''), pursuant to which, GIL conditionally

agreed (i) to effectively acquire (the ``Acquisition'') 49% attributable shareholding interests in Glynhill

Hotels and Resorts Limited (``Resorts'') and Delta Asia Limited (`̀ DA'') from Century International

Hotels Limited (incorporated in the Commonwealth of The Bahamas) (``CIH Bahamas'') and (ii) to

dispose (the `̀ Disposal'') of its entire interest in CIH Bahamas representing 51% ownership in CIH

Bahamas to Dove Corporation (``Dove''). The principal assets of Resorts and DA are the management

rights in a portfolio of hotels operated under ``Delta'' and `̀ Chains'' tradenames and the principal assets

of CIH Bahamas are its interests in the management rights in a portfolio of hotels operated under the

`̀ Century'' tradename through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Century International Hotels Limited

(incorporated in Samoa) (`̀ CIH'').
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C O N N E C T E D T R A N S A C T I O N S ( c o n t i n u e d )

The consideration payable by GIL for the Acquisition was HK$39.2 million and that payable to GIL

under the Disposal was HK$65.2 million and both considerations were satisfied by way of net cash

payment. The Directors of the Company considered that the transaction represented an opportunity

for the Group to streamline its operation and was in the interests of the Company.

Mr. Brian DEESON and Mr. Vichai SRISUTHAPAN, the then Directors of the Company, held

approximately 39.4% and 13.1% of Dove respectively and the remaining 47.5% interest in Dove was

held by Ocean Capital Limited and Elecrent Consultants Limited. Save for their directorship in the

Company and/or their substantial shareholding interest in CIH Bahamas through Dove, the

shareholders of Dove (the `̀ Dove Shareholders'') were otherwise independent of and not connected

with the Directors, chief executives or substantial shareholders of the Company, its subsidiaries or

their respective associates.

Mr. Brian DEESON was responsible for the overall corporate management and operation of CIH

Bahamas and Mr. Vichai SRISUTHAPAN was responsible for the financial management and control of

CIH Bahamas. Pursuant to the Agreement, Mr. DEESON and Mr. SRISUTHAPAN resigned as Directors

of the Company as at the completion of the Acquisition and the Disposal and Mr. DEESON was

appointed as consultant to the Company following his resignation.

The terms of the Agreement were negotiated on arm's length basis with reference to the fee income to

be generated from the existing management contracts held by DA, Resorts and CIH in respect of hotels

in operation and under development as well as that from contracts under negotiation. It was estimated

that the Disposal would result in a loss of approximately HK$23 million.

The Agreement constituted a connected transaction under the Listing Rules but fell within the

deminimis provision under Rule 14.25(1) of the Listing Rules.

(d) The Directors of the Company, LSD and LSGI announced that on 11th February, 1999, the Company

and its indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, Golden Pool Enterprise Limited (`̀ GPEL''), entered into an

agreement (`̀ the Agreement'') with LSD and its indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, Furama Hotel

Enterprises Limited (`̀ FHEL''), relating to the redevelopment of the Furama Hotel into a mixed use

retail, hotel and office building and the purchase by GPEL of the Hotel Portions of the New Building to

be built on the Furama Property.

Under the Agreement, FHEL, as owner of the Furama Property, has agreed to redevelop the Furama

Property and sell the Hotel Portions to GPEL and LSD, as project manager, has agreed to guarantee the

obligations of FHEL under the Agreement and may perform the fitting out works for the Hotel

Portions. Subject to certain adjustments and conditions, the total consideration for the purchase of the

Hotel Portions and its possible fitting out by LSD as provided in the Agreement is HK$2,150 million.

Out of this amount, the consideration for the purchase of the Hotel Portions (including basic fixtures

costs but excluding fitting out costs) is HK$1,900 million.

The Company intends to connect the Hotel Portions with the adjacent Ritz-Carlton Hotel and operate

both as one integrated hotel. As the owner of the Ritz-Carlton Hotel is only 65% owned by the

Company, one of the conditions to the purchase of the Hotel Portions, unless waived by GPEL, is the

Company entering into an agreement with the owner regarding, among other things, the joint

operation of the Hotel Portions and the Ritz-Carlton Hotel.

LAI SUN HOTELS ANNUAL REPORT 1998

19



C O N N E C T E D T R A N S A C T I O N S ( c o n t i n u e d )

The Agreement provides that upon the occurrence of certain events, the Company will have an option

to purchase the Furama Property at a consideration equal to the open market value of the Furama

Property as at the date of exercise of the option, as determined by independent property valuers

appointed by GPEL and FHEL jointly. The exercise of the option will be subject to the requirements of

the Listing Rules.

The Agreement was negotiated on an arm's length basis and the consideration was agreed based on

independent valuations by separate independent property valuers.

The directors of LSGI, LSD and the Company believe that the transaction is one further step toward

the Lai Sun group's long term goal of ultimately having all the hotel interests of the Lai Sun group held

under the Company. It will also enable LSGI and LSD to finalise their plans regarding the Furama

Property and to make the necessary arrangements for its redevelopment. The Directors of the

Company further believe that subject to reaching an agreement with the owner of the Ritz-Carlton

Hotel, the integration and joint operation of the Hotel Portions with the Ritz-Carlton Hotel will create

synergies and efficiencies of scale, increase the value of its existing investment in the Ritz-Carlton

Hotel and solidify the Company's position of having one of the very few international five-star luxury

hotels in Central district, Hong Kong.

As at 13th February, 1999, LSGI together with its associates and the LIM Family beneficially owned

approximately 50.7% of the issued share capital of LSD which in turn beneficially owned

approximately 52.17% of the issued share capital of the Company. Accordingly, the transaction

constituted a connected transaction for all of LSGI, LSD and the Company, a major transaction for the

Company and a disclosable transaction for LSGI. Therefore, the Agreement and the transaction

contemplated therein were conditional upon, among other things, the approval of the independent

shareholders of each of LSGI, LSD and the Company.

The approval from the independent shareholders of each of LSGI, LSD and the Company was obtained

pursuant to resolutions passed at their respective general meetings held on 22nd March, 1999.

B I O G R A P H I C A L D E T A I L S O F D I R E C T O R S A N D S E N I O R M A N A G E M E N T

Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. LAM Kin Ngok, Peter, Chairman, aged 41, was appointed an executive director of the Company in

October 1996. He is also the deputy chairman of Lai Sun Garment (International) Limited (``LSGI''), the

deputy chairman and president of Lai Sun Development Company Limited (``LSD''), a director of Crocodile

Garments Limited (`̀ CGL''), and the chairman of Lai Fung Holdings Limited (`̀ Lai Fung''). LSGI and LSD

have discloseable interests in the Company under the provisions of Part II of the Securities (Disclosure of

Interests) Ordinance. Mr. LAM has extensive experience in the property development and investment

business. He is a director of the Real Estate Developers Association of Hong Kong, a member of the Hong

Kong Hotel Owners Association and a council member of the Anglo Hong Kong Trust. Mr. LAM is a son of

Mr. LIM Por Yen and is the younger brother of Mr. LAM Kin Ming.
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B I O G R A P H I C A L D E T A I L S O F D I R E C T O R S A N D S E N I O R M A N A G E M E N T

( c o n t i n u e d )

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. LIM Por Yen, aged 84, is the founder of the Lai Sun Group. He was appointed an executive director of

the Company in October 1996. He is also the chairman and managing director of LSGI, the chairman of LSD

and CGL. LSGI and LSD have discloseable interests in the Company under the provisions of Part II of the

Securities (Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance. Mr. LIM first became involved in the property development

and investment business in the mid-1950's and has 59 years' experience in the garment business. He is an

honorary citizen of the city of Guangzhou, the city of Swatow, the city of Xiamen and the city of Zhong

Shan. Mr. LIM was also one of the Hong Kong Affairs Advisers to the People's Republic of China and is a

founder member of The Better Hong Kong Foundation.

Mr. LIU Ngai Wing, aged 48, Chief Executive Officer, was appointed an executive director of the Company

in November 1998. He is also the chairman and a non-executive director of Yoshiya International

Corporation, Limited, and a non-executive director of Central China Enterprises Ltd., both companies being

listed in Hong Kong. Mr. LIU held senior management positions with a number of listed companies in Hong

Kong before joining the Group in 1998. He is an Associate Member of both the Hong Kong Society of

Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, and is also a Fellow of the

Chartered Association of Certified Accountants.

Mr. Victor YANG, aged 53, was appointed an independent non-executive director of the Company in

October 1996. Mr. YANG ceased to be an independent non-executive director but remained on the Board as

an executive director of the Company in August 1998. He was a founding partner of the Canadian law firm

of Boughton Peterson Yang Anderson and is presently a member of the Law Societies of B.C., Canada, Hong

Kong and the United Kingdom. He has more than 26 years of legal experience. Presently, Mr. YANG is an

executive director of Chesterfield Limited after holding various positions as executive vice-president,

executive director and independent non-executive director of various listed and unlisted companies in Hong

Kong and Canada.

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. LAM Kin Ming, aged 61, was appointed a non-executive director of the Company in October 1996. Mr.

LAM is also an executive director of LSGI and has been involved in the day-to-day management of the

garment business since 1958. He is also a director of LSD, CGL and Lai Fung. LSGI and LSD have

discloseable interests in the Company under the provisions of Part II of the Securities (Disclosure of

Interests) Ordinance. Mr. LAM is a son of Mr. LIM Por Yen and is the elder brother of Mr. LAM Kin Ngok,

Peter.

Mr. CHEUNG Wing Sum, Ambrose, aged 48, was appointed a non-executive director of the Company in

October 1996. Mr. CHEUNG is also a non-executive director of LSD. He was a partner in a Hong Kong law

firm, Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo, to which he is now a consultant. He has considerable experience in the

commercial, banking and corporate finance fields. Mr. CHEUNG is a non-official Justice of the Peace, a

District Board member, an Urban Councillor, a Legislative Council member and was one of the District

Affairs Advisers to the People's Republic of China.
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B I O G R A P H I C A L D E T A I L S O F D I R E C T O R S A N D S E N I O R M A N A G E M E N T

( c o n t i n u e d )

Non-Executive Directors (continued)

Madam U Po Chu, aged 74, was appointed a non-executive director of the Company in October 1996. She is

also a non-executive director of LSGI, LSD and CGL. LSGI and LSD have discloseable interests in the

Company under the provisions of Part II of the Securities (Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance. Madam U has

54 years' experience in the garment manufacturing business and has been involved in the printing business

since the mid-1960's. In the early 1970's, she started to expand the business to fabric bleaching and dyeing

and also became involved in property development and investment in the late 1980's. She is Mr. LIM Por

Yen's wife.

Mr. SHIU Kai Wah, aged 66, was appointed a non-executive director of the Company in October 1996. He is

also a director of LSGI, LSD and CGL. Mr. SHIU has over 29 years' experience in the management of the

garment business.

Mr. CHIU Wai, aged 68, was appointed a non-executive director of the Company in October 1996. Mr.

CHIU is also a director of LSGI, LSD and CGL. Mr. CHIU has 44 years' experience in production

management and is responsible for the operation and administration of LSGI. He has been working for the

Lai Sun Group's garment business since 1955.

Mr. LAM Ka Chung, William, aged 46, was appointed a non-executive director of the Company in October

1996. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants and a registered investment adviser

with the Securities and Futures Commission. Mr. LAM is the managing director of an investment advisory

firm and holds independent directorship of several listed companies in Hong Kong.

Mr. DONG Jiufeng, aged 59, was appointed a non-executive director of the Company in March 1999. Mr.

DONG is also the vice chairman of COSCO Pacific Limited, the executive vice chairman and president of

COSCO (Hong Kong) Group Limited, the vice chairman of COSCO International Holdings Limited and vice

chairman of Soundwill Holdings Limited. Graduated from Dalian Maritime University in 1963, Mr. DONG

has held important positions of vice president of COSCO Head Office, director of Ship Survey Bureau of

Ministry of Communications of the PRC, president of China Classification Society, chairman of International

Association of Classification Society and president of COSCO North America Inc., Mr. DONG has more than

35 years of experience in international navigation management and was awarded senior engineer

(professor).

Mr. WONG Tin Yau, Kelvin, aged 38, was appointed a non-executive director of the Company in June 1997.

Mr. WONG is a director of COSCO Pacific Limited, a publicly-listed company in Hong Kong. He is an

associate of the Chartered Institute of Bankers and the Institute of Directors. He obtained his Master of

Business Administration degree from the United States of America in 1992. Mr. WONG has over 13 years of

experience in the finance and securities business and has held various senior positions in listed companies

in Hong Kong.

Mr. Alfred Donald YAP, aged 60, was appointed an independent non-executive director of the Company in

December 1996. Mr. YAP is presently a partner of Donald Yap, Cheng & Kong. Mr. YAP is a former

president of The Law Society of Hong Kong and the immediate past president of The Law Association for

Asia and the Pacific (LAWASIA) and is presently the vice president of the Commonwealth Lawyers'

Association. He is a director of Chi Cheung Investment Co., Ltd. Mr. YAP is also a former Hong Kong Affairs

Adviser appointed by the Chinese Government.
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B I O G R A P H I C A L D E T A I L S O F D I R E C T O R S A N D S E N I O R M A N A G E M E N T

( c o n t i n u e d )

Non-Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. LIEN Jown Jing, Vincent, aged 38, was appointed an independent non-executive director of the

Company in August 1998. He has over 10 years' experience in banking and corporate finance in Hong Kong,

China, Singapore and South-east Asia, having held various senior positions at different major multinational

banking institutions.

Senior Management

Miss HUI Hon Hing, Susanna, aged 34, is the Financial Controller of the Company in charge of the overall

finance, accounting and administration functions of the corporate office. Miss HUI graduated from the

University of Hong Kong with a bachelor degree in Social Sciences (First Class Honors). She is a Certified

Public Accountant (Washington, US) and a member of the American Institute of Certified Public

Accountants. Prior to joining the Lai Sun Group in June 1995, she was the group financial controller of the

private arms of various listed companies. She also possesses extensive banking and corporate finance

experience from her prior positions with several international banking institutions in Hong Kong.

D I R E C T O R S ' I N T E R E S T S I N S E C U R I T I E S O R D E B E N T U R E S

As at 31st December, 1998, the interests of the Directors in the securities in, or debentures of, the Company

and its associated corporations (within the meaning of the Securities (Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance)

(the `̀ SDI Ordinance'') as recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 29 of the SDI

Ordinance or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies were as follows:

(a) Company

(i) Ordinary Shares

Number of Shares Held

Personal

Interests

Family

Interests

Corporate

Interests

Other

Interests Total

LIM Por Yen 5,522,890 Nil 951,709,306

(Note)

Nil 957,232,196

LAM Kin Ngok, Peter 11,421,890 Nil 951,709,306

(Note)

Nil 963,131,196

LAM Kin Ming Nil Nil 951,709,306

(Note)

Nil 951,709,306

U Po Chu 375,000 Nil 951,709,306

(Note)

Nil 952,084,306

Brian DEESON 15,568,637 Nil Nil Nil 15,568,637

Vichai SRISUTHAPAN 5,189,545 Nil Nil Nil 5,189,545

LIEN Jown Jing, Vincent 3,106,000 Nil Nil Nil 3,106,000

LIU Ngai Wing 500 Nil Nil Nil 500

Note: 951,709,306 shares in the Company were beneficially owned by Lai Sun Development Company Limited, a publicly-listed

company incorporated in Hong Kong, and its subsidiaries. Lai Sun Garment (International) Limited (`̀ LSGI''), a publicly-

listed company incorporated in Hong Kong, and its subsidiary held an interest of approximately 44.76% in Lai Sun

Development Company Limited. Mr. LIM Por Yen, Mr. LAM Kin Ngok, Peter, Mr. LAM Kin Ming and Madam U Po Chu were

deemed to be interested in 951,709,306 shares in the Company by virtue of all of them being directors and also shareholders

of LSGI controlling collectively the exercise of more than one-third of the voting power at LSGI's general meetings.
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D I R E C T O R S ' I N T E R E S T S I N S E C U R I T I E S O R D E B E N T U R E S ( c o n t i n u e d )

(a) Company (continued)

(ii) Warrants (Note 1)

Personal

Interests

Family

Interests

Corporate

Interests

Other

Interests Total

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

LIM Por Yen 55,018,363.40 434,968.60 183,008,828.20

(Note 2)

Nil 238,462,160.20

LAM Kin Ngok, Peter 2,094,961.00 Nil 183,008,828.20

(Note 2)

Nil 185,103,789.20

LAM Kin Ming Nil Nil 183,008,828.20

(Note 2)

Nil 183,008,828.20

U Po Chu 279,675.00 Nil 183,008,828.20

(Note 2)

Nil 183,288,503.20

Note 1 : Warrants of the Company entitle the holders thereof to subscribe in cash for new shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company

at an initial subscription price of HK$2.20 per share (subject to adjustment) on or before 30th April, 1999.

Note 2 : HK$183,008,828.20 warrants of the Company were beneficially owned by Lai Sun Garment (International) Limited

(`̀ LSGI''), a publicly-listed company incorporated in Hong Kong. Mr. LIM Por Yen, Mr. LAM Kin Ngok, Peter, Mr. LAM

Kin Ming and Madam U Po Chu were deemed to be interested in HK$183,008,828.20 warrants of the Company by virtue

of all of them being directors and also shareholders of LSGI controlling collectively the exercise of more than one-third of

the voting power at LSGI's general meetings.

(b) Lai Sun Development Company Limited (`̀ LSD'')

(i) Ordinary Shares

Number of Shares Held

Personal

Interests

Family

Interests

Corporate

Interests

Other

Interests Total

LIM Por Yen 197,859,550 985,100 791,434,596

(Note)

Nil 990,279,246

LAM Kin Ngok, Peter 10,099,585 Nil 791,434,596

(Note)

Nil 801,534,181

LAM Kin Ming Nil Nil 791,434,596

(Note)

Nil 791,434,596

U Po Chu 950,100 Nil 791,434,596

(Note)

Nil 792,384,696

CHIU Wai 195,500 Nil Nil Nil 195,500

LIU Ngai Wing 400 Nil Nil Nil 400

Note: 791,434,596 ordinary shares in LSD were beneficially owned by Lai Sun Garment (International) Limited (`̀ LSGI''), a

publicly-listed company incorporated in Hong Kong and its wholly-owned subsidiary. Mr. LIM Por Yen, Mr. LAM Kin Ngok,

Peter, Mr. LAM Kin Ming and Madam U Po Chu were deemed to be interested in 791,434,596 ordinary shares in LSD by

virtue of all of them being directors and also shareholders of LSGI controlling collectively the exercise of more than one-

third of the voting power at LSGI's general meetings.
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D I R E C T O R S ' I N T E R E S T S I N S E C U R I T I E S O R D E B E N T U R E S ( c o n t i n u e d )

(b) Lai Sun Development Company Limited (`̀ LSD'') (continued)

(ii) Warrants (Note 1)

Personal

Interests

Family

Interests

Corporate

Interests

Other

Interests Total

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

LIM Por Yen 53,174,653.75 Nil 351,691,054.75

(Note 2)

Nil 404,865,708.50

LAM Kin Ngok, Peter 3,439,823.40 Nil 351,691,054.75

(Note 2)

Nil 355,130,878.15

LAM Kin Ming Nil Nil 351,691,054.75

(Note 2)

Nil 351,691,054.75

U Po Chu Nil Nil 351,691,054.75

(Note 2)

Nil 351,691,054.75

Note 1 : Warrants of LSD entitle the holders thereof to subscribe in cash for new ordinary shares of HK$0.50 each in LSD at a

subscription price of HK$6.81 per share (subject to adjustment) on or before 23rd March, 1999.

Note 2 : HK$351,691,054.75 LSD Warrants were beneficially owned by Lai Sun Garment (International) Limited (`̀ LSGI''), a

publicly-listed company incorporated in Hong Kong and its wholly-owned subsidiary. Mr. LIM Por Yen, Mr. LAM Kin

Ngok, Peter, Mr. LAM Kin Ming and Madam U Po Chu were deemed to be interested in HK$351,691,054.75 LSD

Warrants by virtue of all of them being directors and also shareholders of LSGI controlling collectively the exercise of

more than one-third of the voting power at LSGI's general meetings.

(c) Crocodile Garments Limited (`̀ Crocodile'')

Ordinary Shares

Number of Shares Held

Personal

Interests

Family

Interests

Corporate

Interests

Other

Interests Total

LIM Por Yen Nil Nil 338,982,809

(Note)

Nil 338,982,809

LAM Kin Ngok, Peter Nil Nil 338,982,809

(Note)

Nil 338,982,809

LAM Kin Ming Nil Nil 338,982,809

(Note)

Nil 338,982,809

U Po Chu Nil Nil 338,982,809

(Note)

Nil 338,982,809

Note: 338,982,809 shares in Crocodile were beneficially owned by Lai Sun Garment (International) Limited (`̀ LSGI''), a publicly-

listed company incorporated in Hong Kong and its wholly-owned subsidiary. Mr. LIM Por Yen, Mr. LAM Kin Ngok, Peter,

Mr. LAM Kin Ming and Madam U Po Chu were deemed to be interested in 338,982,809 shares in Crocodile by virtue of all of

them being directors and also shareholders of LSGI controlling collectively the exercise of more than one-third of the voting

power at LSGI's general meetings.
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D I R E C T O R S ' I N T E R E S T S I N S E C U R I T I E S O R D E B E N T U R E S ( c o n t i n u e d )

(d) Lai Fung Holdings Limited (`̀ Lai Fung'')

Ordinary Shares

Number of Shares Held

Personal

Interests

Family

Interests

Corporate

Interests

Other

Interests Total

LIM Por Yen Nil Nil 779,958,912

(Note)

Nil 779,958,912

LAM Kin Ngok, Peter Nil Nil 779,958,912

(Note)

Nil 779,958,912

LAM Kin Ming Nil Nil 779,958,912

(Note)

Nil 779,958,912

U Po Chu Nil Nil 779,958,912

(Note)

Nil 779,958,912

Victor YANG 10,000 Nil Nil Nil 10,000

LIU Ngai Wing 3,000 Nil Nil Nil 3,000

Note: 779,958,912 shares in Lai Fung were beneficially owned by LSD. Lai Sun Garment (International) Limited (`̀ LSGI''), a publicly-

listed company incorporated in Hong Kong, and its subsidiary held an interest of approximately 44.76% in LSD. Mr. LIM Por Yen,

Mr. LAM Kin Ngok, Peter, Mr. LAM Kin Ming and Madam U Po Chu were deemed to be interested in 779,958,912 shares in Lai

Fung by virtue of all of them being directors and also shareholders of LSGI controlling collectively the exercise of more than one-

third of the voting power at LSGI's general meetings.

(e) Lai Sun Garment (International) Limited

Ordinary Shares

Number of Shares Held

Personal

Interests

Family

Interests

Corporate

Interests

Other

Interests Total

LIM Por Yen 80,876,350 4,090,358 Nil Nil 84,966,708

LAM Kin Ngok, Peter 21,029,643 Nil Nil Nil 21,029,643

LAM Kin Ming 12,922,000 Nil Nil Nil 12,922,000

U Po Chu 733,800 Nil Nil Nil 733,800

CHIU Wai 199,600 Nil Nil Nil 199,600

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December, 1998, none of the Directors or the chief executive of the

Company or their respective associates had any interests in the securities in, or debentures of, the

Company or any of its associated corporations which were required to be notified to the Company and

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant to Section 28 of the SDI Ordinance or the Model

Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (including interests which they

were deemed or taken to have under Section 31 or Part 1 of the Schedule to that Ordinance) or which

were required, pursuant to Section 29 of that Ordinance, to be entered in the register referred to

therein.
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D I R E C T O R S ' I N T E R E S T S I N S E C U R I T I E S O R D E B E N T U R E S ( c o n t i n u e d )

An employee share option scheme was adopted by the Company on 25th November, 1996. On 22nd

February, 1999, the Company granted 10,000,000 share options in favour of the executive director, Mr. LIU

Ngai Wing. The option entitles him to subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.10 each at an

exercise price of HK$0.5 each. No option could be exercised within six months after the date of grant and

the option is exercisable within two years thereafter. Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year

ended 31st December, 1998 and up to the date of this report, had any option been granted under the share

option scheme nor had the Company granted to any Director or chief executive or to the spouse or children

under 18 years of age of any such Director or chief executive any right to subscribe for securities in, or

debentures of, the Company or any of its associated corporations.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company, any of its holding companies,

subsidiaries, or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the Company to

acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of securities in, or debentures of, the Company or any other

body corporate.

S U B S T A N T I A L S H A R E H O L D E R S

As at 31st December, 1998, the parties listed below were interested in 10% or more of the total issued share

capital of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 16(1) of the SDI

Ordinance:

Number of Shares Held

Lai Sun Development Company Limited (`̀ LSD'') 951,709,306

Joy Mind Limited (`̀ JM'') 951,709,306

(Note 1)

Lai Sun Garment (International) Limited (`̀ LSGI'') 951,709,306

(Note 1)

Mr. Lim Por Yen 957,607,196

(Note 2)

COSCO Investments Limited 357,000,000

COSCO (Hong Kong) Group Limited 357,000,000

(Note 3)

China Ocean Shipping (Group) Company 357,000,000

(Note 3)

Note 1 : The above interests in the Company were held by LSD and its subsidiaries. LSGI and its wholly-owned subsidiary, JM, were

deemed to be interested in the 951,709,306 shares of the Company by virtue of LSGI and JM holding collectively an interest of

approximately 44.76% in LSD.

Note 2 : Mr. Lim Por Yen (a substantial shareholder of LSGI), Mr. Lam Kin Ngok, Peter and Mr. Lam Kin Ming are directors and also

shareholders of LSGI controlling collectively the exercise of more than one-third of the voting power at LSGI's general meetings.

Mr. Lim Por Yen's interests in LSGI included those interests held by his spouses, Madam Lai Yuen Fong and Madam U Po Chu,

who were also deemed under the SDI Ordinance to be interested in the interests of Mr. Lim in LSGI.

Note 3 : China Ocean Shipping (Group) Company is the holding company of COSCO (Hong Kong) Group Limited which is, in turn, the

holding company of COSCO Investments Limited, a company incorporated in British Virgin Islands. The interests of China

Ocean Shipping (Group) Company represent the same parcel of shares held by COSCO (Hong Kong) Group Limited in the

Company through COSCO Investments Limited.
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S U B S T A N T I A L S H A R E H O L D E R S ( c o n t i n u e d )

Save for the foregoing persons, as at 31st December, 1998, no other person was recorded in the register kept

by the Company pursuant to Section 16(1) of the SDI Ordinance as having an interest in 10% or more of the

issued share capital of the Company.

P U R C H A S E , S A L E O R R E D E M P T I O N O F L I S T E D S E C U R I T I E S

During the year ended 31st December, 1998, there was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company, or

any of its subsidiaries, of the Company's listed securities.

P R E - E M P T I V E R I G H T S

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which

would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

F I X E D A S S E T S A N D I N V E S T M E N T P R O P E R T I E S

Details of movements in the fixed assets and investment properties of the Group during the year are set out

in notes 12 and 13 to the financial statements, respectively.

P R O P E R T I E S U N D E R D E V E L O P M E N T

Details of movements in the properties under development of the Group during the year are set out in note

14 to the financial statements.

C H A R I T A B L E C O N T R I B U T I O N S

During the year, the Company made charitable contributions totalling HK$2,500,000.

S U B S I D I A R I E S

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries at the balance sheet date are set out in note 15 to the

financial statements.

B O R R O W I N G S

Details of bank loans and other borrowings of the Company and the Group at the balance sheet date are set

out in notes 22 and 27 respectively, to the financial statements.

I N T E R E S T C A P I T A L I S E D

Interest capitalised by the Group during the year amounted to HK$11,532,000.

R E S E R V E S

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the year are set out in note 29 to

the financial statements.

D I S T R I B U T A B L E R E S E R V E S

As of 31st December, 1998, the Company's reserves available for cash distribution and/or distribution in

specie, calculated in accordance with Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), amounted to

HK$925,359,000.

Report of the Directors
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S U M M A R Y F I N A N C I A L I N F O R M A T I O N

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial periods,

which have been prepared on the basis that the Group structure under the Scheme of Arrangement

announced by the Directors on 2nd September, 1996 had been in existence throughout the periods

presented, as extracted from the audited financial statements and adjusted as appropriate, is set out below.

R E S U L T S

Year ended 31st December

Five months

ended 31st

December Year ended 31st July

1998 1997 1996 1996 1995

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TURNOVER 369,221 405,094 60,429 136,464 125,323

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE

TAXATION (61,131) 146,347 (14,560) 4,727 8,843

Taxation (13,703) (16,109) (4,088) (12,465) (996)

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE

MINORITY INTERESTS (74,834) 130,238 (18,648) (7,738) 7,847

Minority interests 25,032 (20,090) (607) (188) (1,932)

NET PROFIT/(LOSS)

ATTRIBUTABLE TO

SHAREHOLDERS (49,802) 110,148 (19,255) (7,926) 5,915
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S U M M A R Y F I N A N C I A L I N F O R M A T I O N ( c o n t i n u e d )

A S S E T S A N D L I A B I L I T I E S

As at 31st December As at 31st July

1998 1997 1996 1996 1995

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Fixed assets 2,580,724 2,195,057 423,795 419,185 355,140

Investment properties 483,000 479,919 Ð Ð Ð

Properties under development Ð 563,230 398,716 358,895 323,551

Goodwill 61,272 86,874 89,257 28,943 29,804

Associated companies 1,191,398 1,533,539 286,560 283,501 195,121

Long term investments Ð Ð Ð Ð 133,524

Long term deposits 10,000 83,622 Ð Ð Ð

Due from Lai Sun Development

Company Limited 382,377 382,690 Ð Ð Ð

Deferred tax assets 7,873 2,470 Ð Ð Ð

Long term receivable 31,091 Ð Ð Ð Ð

Current assets 863,840 569,431 243,005 237,042 205,502

TOTAL ASSETS 5,611,575 5,896,832 1,441,333 1,327,566 1,242,642

Current liabilities (723,713) (431,718) (265,528) (114,981) (141,314)

Long term bank loans and other

borrowings (305,027) (704,998) (189,733) (186,711) (120,187)

TOTAL LIABILITIES (1,028,740) (1,136,716) (455,261) (301,692) (261,501)

MINORITY INTERESTS (743,341) (778,874) (131,695) (155,074) (100,180)

NET ASSETS 3,839,494 3,981,242 854,377 870,800 880,961

M A J O R C U S T O M E R S A N D S U P P L I E R S

During the year, both the Group's sales to its five largest customers and purchases from its five largest

suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the total sales and purchases, respectively.

L I Q U I D I T Y A N D F I N A N C I A L R E S O U R C E S

As at 31st December, 1998, the Group had aggregate composite banking facilities of HK$1,165,543,000, of

which HK$867,501,000 had been utilised, and cash and bank balances of HK$281,853,000, out of which

bank deposits of HK$2,229,000 were pledged to banks.
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L I Q U I D I T Y A N D F I N A N C I A L R E S O U R C E S ( c o n t i n u e d )

Of the total bank loans and other borrowings of HK$869,091,000 taken out by the Group, HK$564,064,000

is repayable on demand or within one year, HK$80,515,000 is repayable between one to two years and

HK$224,512,000 is repayable between two to five years. The short term debts of the Group are in the form

of secured and unsecured bank loans and other borrowings. The Group's long term debts are in the form of

secured bank loans which are repayable by instalments.

Taking into account the existing banking facilities available, the Group will have sufficient working capital

and funds to finance its investments and operations.

E M P L O Y E E S A N D R E M U N E R A T I O N P O L I C I E S

The Group employs a total of 32 employees mainly in Hong Kong. The Group recognizes the importance of

the strength of its human resources. Pay rates of employees are maintained at competitive levels and

promotion and salary increment are assessed on a performance related basis. Discretionary bonuses are

granted to certain employees based on merit and in accordance with industry practice. Other staff benefits

include pension plans, a free hospitalisation insurance plan, subsidised medical care and subsidies for

external educational and training programmes. The Group adopted a share option scheme for employees on

25th November, 1996.

C O D E O F B E S T P R A C T I C E

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the Code of Best Practice as set out in

Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The non-executive Directors of the Company are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the

Company's Annual General Meeting in accordance with the Company's Bye-laws.

Y E A R 2 0 0 0 C O M P L I A N C E

The Year 2000 issue exists because, in order to save memory space, programmers used to record years in

computer systems using the last two digits rather than four, thus 98 instead of 1998. As a result, computer

systems may not be able to distinguish `̀ 2000'' from ``1900'' when the new millennium is due. It is possible

that computers may lose the ability to perform the accounting, payroll, inventory and other data processing

functions that are vital to the ongoing businesses, as calendar years cannot be differentiated accurately by

the systems.

The Group is aware of the Year 2000 issue and has conducted a complete assessment on both computer

hardware and software to identify any potential Year 2000-related problems. It has been found that some of

the existing personal computer hardware, network servers and accounting software in the corporate office

are non-compliant. In this respect, the Group has appointed independent consultants to advise on the

replacement or upgrading of the hardware and related software to ensure compliance. Total estimated costs

amount to approximately HK$100,000. As of report date, approximately 60% of the hardware have been

replaced or upgraded with final conversion scheduled by the end of June 1999. Costs paid to date have not

been material.
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Y E A R 2 0 0 0 C O M P L I A N C E ( c o n t i n u e d )

As for the hotel operating subsidiaries, the systems identified as requiring major upgrades are the accounting

and hotel reservation systems. As these systems are all sourced from leading software vendors, the Group

considers that the risks and uncertainties associated with the Year 2000 problem are not significant and the

compliance projects are executed in an orderly and professional manner to ensure that there will be no

disruption to their operations after the turn of the millennium. Periodic reports are submitted to the Group

for monitoring and review. Based on the current estimates, 60% of the compliance project has been

completed and it is expected that full completion will be ready by the second quarter of 1999. The total

project costs are estimated at approximately of HK$1 million, of which 60% has been spent. The costs have

been accounted for either as operating expenses or capital expenditure according to the nature of each

specific item. Furthermore, contingency plans have been put in place by the individual hotel departments to

ensure smooth transaction beyond the new millennium.

As at report date, there was no material commitment undertaken by the Group in respect of the Year 2000

modifications. Furthermore, the Group has formulated contingency plans to deal with any unforeseen

problems that might arise at the turn of the new millennium. They mainly involve the backing up of all

electronic data in multiple media at intervals to enable the restoration of the same at a later time; the

engagement of external consultants to oversee the transition of the computer systems through the turn of the

millennium and having manual modes of the Group's vital functions ready to take over to enable the

continued operation of the Group without the need of computers.

A U D I T O R S

Ernst & Young retire at the conclusion of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and a resolution for their

reappointment as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

On Behalf of the Board

LAM Kin Ngok, Peter

Chairman

Hong Kong

29th April, 1999
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To the members

Lai Sun Hotels International Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 34 to 72 which have been prepared in accordance with

accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

R E S P E C T I V E R E S P O N S I B I L I T I E S O F D I R E C T O R S A N D A U D I T O R S

The Company's Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements which give a true and

fair view. In preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate

accounting policies are selected and applied consistently. It is our responsibility to form an independent

opinion, based on our audit, on those statements and to report our opinion to you.

B A S I S O F O P I N I O N

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong

Society of Accountants. An audit includes an examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the

amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant

estimates and judgements made by the Directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of

whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Company's and the Group's circumstances,

consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we

considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to

whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. In forming our opinion we also

evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements. We believe that

our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

O P I N I O N

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects, of the state of affairs

of the Company and of the Group as at 31st December, 1998 and of the loss and cash flows of the Group for

the year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

29th April, 1999
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1998 1997

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

TURNOVER 3 369,221 405,094

OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS 4 (23,940) 85,134

Exceptional items 5 (143,314) (34,492)

OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) (167,254) 50,642

Attributable profits less losses related to associated companies 17(b) 106,123 95,705

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION (61,131) 146,347

Taxation 8 (13,703) (16,109)

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE MINORITY INTERESTS (74,834) 130,238

Minority interests 25,032 (20,090)

NET PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS 9, 29 (49,802) 110,148

DIVIDENDS 10 18,241 45,603

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE - BASIC 11 (2.73 cents) 7.79 cents

Year ended 31st December, 1998

Consolidated Profit and Loss Account
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1998 1997

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

FIXED ASSETS 12 2,580,724 2,195,057

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13 483,000 479,919

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 14 Ð 563,230

GOODWILL 16 61,272 86,874

ASSOCIATED COMPANIES 17(a) 1,191,398 1,533,539

LONG TERM DEPOSITS 18 10,000 83,622

DUE FROM LAI SUN DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED 19 382,377 382,690

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 20 7,873 2,470

LONG TERM RECEIVABLE 21 31,091 Ð

NET CURRENT ASSETS 22 140,127 137,713

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 4,887,862 5,465,114

LONG TERM BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS 27 (305,027) (704,998)

4,582,835 4,760,116

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital 28 182,414 182,414

Reserves 29 3,657,080 3,798,828

3,839,494 3,981,242

MINORITY INTERESTS 743,341 778,874

4,582,835 4,760,116

LAM Kin Ngok, Peter

Director

LIU Ngai Wing

Director

31st December, 1998
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1998 1997

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

NET CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 30(a) 117,984 129,187

RETURNS ON INVESTMENTS AND SERVICING OF

FINANCE

Dividend received from associated companies Ð 13,561

Interest received 13,245 11,312
Compensation received on investments in:

Subsidiaries 30,082 24,991

Associated companies 44,806 27,103

Interest paid on bank loans, overdrafts and other borrowings (69,786) (30,004)

Dividends paid (45,603) (18,241)

Dividends paid to minority shareholders (6,762) Ð

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from returns on investments and

servicing of finance (34,018) 28,722

TAXATION

Hong Kong taxes paid (34) (1,470)

Overseas taxes paid (16,789) (4,123)

Taxes paid (16,823) (5,593)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Additions to properties under development (236,276) (175,771)

Additions to investment properties (31,328) (479,919)

Purchases of fixed assets (68,057) (18,001)

Purchases of properties (128,912) Ð

Acquisition of subsidiaries 30(d) Ð (339,537)

Acquisition of associated companies (26,588) (94,184)

Acquisition of short term investments (13,758) (49,434)

Additional investments in subsidiaries (1,629) Ð

Additional investments in associated companies (95,739) (397)

Deposits paid for long term investments (10,000) (169,374)

Deposits paid for acquisition of properties Ð (57,544)

Return of capital from an associated company 69,676 46,422

Loan advances to associated companies (49,353) (89,752)

Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 2,092 711

Proceeds from disposal of short term investments 9,280 35,830

Proceeds from disposal of properties 157,746 Ð

Proceeds from disposal of associated companies 440,598 Ð

Subsidiary excluded from consolidation 30(e) Ð (20,633)

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities 17,752 (1,411,583)

Year ended 31st December, 1998

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
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1998 1997

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) BEFORE FINANCING 84,895 (1,259,267)

FINANCING

Proceeds from issue of new shares 30(b) Ð 1,217,304

Share issue costs 30(b) Ð (54,371)
Reimbursement from LSD for the principal repayment of the

relevant bank loans in respect of acquisition of:

A subsidiary 30(b) Ð 50,747

An associated company 19 1,935 Ð

Shareholder's loans advanced by minority shareholders 30(b) 45,587 114,775

Repayment of shareholders' loans to minority shareholders 30(b) (49,941) (1,253)

New bank loans 30(b) 147,535 11,384

Repayment of bank loans 30(b) (72,279) (25,090)

Repayment of other borrowings 30(b) (3,114) (3,229)

Release of pledged deposit 30(b) 3,030 7,214

Net cash inflow from financing 72,753 1,317,481

INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 157,648 58,214

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 98,582 40,368

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 256,230 98,582

ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances 281,853 259,174

Deposits pledged (2,229) (5,259)

Bank loans 30(c) (23,394) (155,333)

256,230 98,582

Year ended 31st December, 1998
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1998 1997

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

SUBSIDIARIES 15 3,683,702 3,991,742

ASSOCIATED COMPANY 17 105,010 Ð

NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 22 109,018 (136,848)

3,897,730 3,854,894

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital 28 182,414 182,414

Reserves 29 3,715,316 3,672,480

3,897,730 3,854,894

LAM Kin Ngok, Peter

Director

LIU Ngai Wing

Director

31st December, 1998

38

Balance Sheet



1. S U M M A R Y O F S I G N I F I C A N T A C C O U N T I N G P O L I C I E S

Basis of accounting

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted

in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries

for the year ended 31 December 1998. The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year

are consolidated from or to their effective dates of acquisition or disposal, respectively. All significant

intercompany transactions and balances within the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is a company in which the Company, directly or indirectly, controls more than half of its voting

power or issued share capital and/or controls the composition of the board of directors thereof.

Interests in subsidiaries are stated in the Company's balance sheet at cost unless, in the opinion of the

Directors, there have been permanent diminutions in values, when they are written down to values

determined by the Directors.

Associated companies

An associated company is a company or a partnership, not being a subsidiary, in which the Group has a long

term interest of not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and/or over which it is in a position to exercise

significant influence.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of associated companies is included in the

consolidated profit and loss account and consolidated reserves, respectively. The Group's investments in

associated companies are stated in the consolidated balance sheet at the Group's share of net assets, plus

goodwill arising on the acquisition of the interests in the associated companies in so far as it had not already

been written off or amortised.

The results of associated companies are included in the Company's profit and loss account to the extent of

dividends received. The Company's interests in associated companies are stated at cost less any provisions

for permanent diminution in values deemed necessary by the Directors.

Goodwill arising on consolidation

Goodwill arising on consolidation of subsidiaries and on acquisition of associated companies represents the

excess purchase consideration paid for subsidiaries/associated companies over the fair values ascribed to the

net underlying assets acquired at the dates of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of certain subsidiaries, namely, Chains International Hotels Management

Limited and Century International Hotels Limited, and associated companies, namely, Delta Hotels Limited,

B.W. Hotel L.L.C. and Hotel 57 L.L.C., is amortised on the straight-line basis over a period of 40 years.

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of other subsidiaries and associated companies is eliminated against

reserves at the time of acquisition.

31st December, 1998
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1. S U M M A R Y O F S I G N I F I C A N T A C C O U N T I N G P O L I C I E S ( c o n t i n u e d )

Capital reserve

Capital reserve arising on consolidation represents the excess of the fair value ascribed to the net underlying

assets of subsidiaries and associated companies at the date of acquisition over the purchase consideration.

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets, other than investment properties, hotel properties and construction in progress, are stated at

cost less accumulated depreciation.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to

its working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after the tangible fixed assets

have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance and overhaul costs, is normally charged to

the profit and loss account in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly

demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be

obtained from the use of the tangible fixed assets, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost thereof.

When the assets are sold or retired, their cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the

accounts. Any gain or loss resulting from their disposal is based on the carrying amount and is included in

the profit and loss account.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of each asset over its estimated

useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land Over the unexpired lease terms

Buildings 2.5%±5%

Leasehold improvements 5% or over the terms of the leases, whichever is shorter

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5%±20%

Motor vehicles 10%±20%

Computers 10%±20%

No depreciation is provided on freehold land.

Hotel properties represent interests in land and buildings and their integral fixed plant which are

collectively used in the operation of hotels and are stated at cost. It is the Group's policy to maintain the

hotel properties in such condition that their residual values are not currently diminished by the passage of

time and, therefore, any element of depreciation is insignificant. Accordingly, the Directors consider that

depreciation need not be charged in respect of the hotel properties. The related maintenance and repairs is

charged to the profit and loss account in the period in which it is incurred and the costs of significant

improvements are capitalised.

Construction in progress represents costs incurred in the construction of plant and equipment. Cost

comprises construction costs, financing and other related expenses. Construction in progress is not

depreciated until such time as the relevant assets are completed and put into use.

31st December, 1998

Notes to Financial Statements

40



1. S U M M A R Y O F S I G N I F I C A N T A C C O U N T I N G P O L I C I E S ( c o n t i n u e d )

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings in respect of which construction work and

development have been completed and which are intended to be held on a long term basis for their

investment potential. Such properties are not depreciated and are stated at their open market values on the

basis of annual professional valuations. Changes in the values of investment properties are dealt with as

movements in the investment property revaluation reserve. If the total of this reserve is insufficient to cover

a deficit, on a portfolio basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the profit and loss account.

Upon the disposal of an investment property, the relevant portion of the investment property revaluation

reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is released to the profit and loss account.

Properties under development

Properties under development intended for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value which

is determined by reference to the estimated selling prices less all costs to completion and costs to be

incurred in selling. Cost includes the cost of land, construction, financing and other related expenses.

Properties under development intended for other purposes are stated at cost less any provisions for

permanent diminution in values considered necessary by the Directors.

Long term deposits

Long term deposits comprise deposits paid for long term investments and are stated at cost less any

provisions for permanent diminution in values considered necessary by the Directors.

Short term investments

Short term investments comprise listed investments which are stated at the lower of cost and market value

on a portfolio basis.

Stocks

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value after making due allowance for obsolete or

slow-moving items. Cost for food, beverages, cutlery, linen and supplies is determined on the first-in, first-

out basis. Cost for flour is determined on the weighted average basis and comprises materials, direct labour

and an appropriate proportion of all production overhead expenditure. Net realisable value is determined

on the basis of anticipated sale proceeds less estimated selling expenses.

Leased assets

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than

legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset

is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together with the obligation,

excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance

leases are included in fixed assets and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated

useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged to the profit and loss account so as to

provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets remain with the leasing company

are accounted for as operating leases. Rentals applicable to such operating leases are charged to the profit

and loss account on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

31st December, 1998
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1. S U M M A R Y O F S I G N I F I C A N T A C C O U N T I N G P O L I C I E S ( c o n t i n u e d )

Revenue

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and when

revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) the operation of hotels and restaurants, when the services are provided;

(b) hotel, restaurant and other management fee income, in the period in which such management services

are rendered;

(c) guaranteed returns on investment properties, on the straight-line basis over the guarantee period;

(d) compensation on investments in subsidiaries and associated companies, when the right to receive the

payment is established;

(e) the sale of flour, when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the

buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree usually

associated with ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(f) the sale of short term investments, on the transaction date when the relevant contract note is entered

into;

(g) rental income, in the period in which the properties are let out and on the straight-line basis over the

lease terms;

(h) interest income, on a time proportion basis taking into account the principal outstanding and the

effective interest rate applicable; and

(i) dividend income, when the shareholders' right to receive payment is established.

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other

party, or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.

Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or common significant

influence.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of an asset which takes a substantial

period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. The

capitalisation of interest is based on the interest incurred on the specific borrowings. All other borrowing

costs are charged to the profit and loss account in the period in which they are incurred.

Pension costs

The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme for its employees, the assets of which are held

separately from those of the Group in an independently administered fund. Contributions to the scheme are

made based on a percentage of the eligible employees' salaries and are charged to the profit and loss account

as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the scheme. When an employee leaves the scheme

prior to his/her interest in the employer contributions vesting fully, the ongoing contributions payable by

the Group may be reduced by the relevant amount of forfeited contributions.
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1. S U M M A R Y O F S I G N I F I C A N T A C C O U N T I N G P O L I C I E S ( c o n t i n u e d )

Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the applicable rates of exchange ruling at the transaction

dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are

translated at the applicable rates of exchange ruling at that date. Exchange differences are dealt with in the

profit and loss account.

On consolidation, the financial statements of overseas subsidiaries are translated to Hong Kong dollars at the

applicable rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. The resulting translation differences are dealt

with as a movement in reserves.

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is provided, using the liability method, on all significant timing differences to the extent it

is probable that the liability will crystallise in the foreseeable future. A deferred tax asset is not recognised

until its realisation is assured beyond reasonable doubt.

Cash equivalents

Cash equivalents represent short term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible into known

amounts of cash and which are within three months of maturity when acquired, less advances from banks

repayable within three months from the date of the advance.

2. R E L A T E D P A R T Y T R A N S A C T I O N S

(a) The Group had the following material transactions with related parties during the year.

Group

1998 1997

HK$'000 HK$'000

Guaranteed returns on investment properties from a fellow

subsidiary (note 13) 46,792 46,272

Guaranteed rental income from investment properties from a

fellow subsidiary (note 13) 16,053 Ð

Compensation from LSD (note 19) 74,169 59,831

Management fee income from associated companies (i) 4,515 4,332

Rental expense paid to a fellow subsidiary (ii) 3,918 3,550

Project management fee paid to LSD (iii) 2,416 952

Agency commission fee paid to a fellow subsidiary (iv) 4,366 Ð

Hotel management, royalty and marketing fees received from

hotels held by certain associated companies of LSD (v) 3,693 5,622

Legal fees paid to Boughton Peterson Yang Andereon (vi) 1,664 1,774

(i) The management fee income from associated companies is charged at a monthly fixed amount as agreed, with reference to the time

and cost incurred by the Group.

(ii) Rental is charged by a fellow subsidiary with reference to market rate.

(iii) Project management fee is charged at 2% on the project development cost incurred.

(iv) Agency commission fee arose from the sales of properties and was charged at 1.5% on the sales considerations plus HK$2 million

fixed agency fee.
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2. R E L A T E D P A R T Y T R A N S A C T I O N S ( c o n t i n u e d )
(v) The hotel management, royalty and marketing fees are charged at certain percentage ranging from 1% to 10% on the gross revenue

or operating profits of the hotels.

(vi) The Legal fee was charged by Boughton Peterson Yang Anderson for the legal services rendered to the Group at market rate. Mr.

Victor YANG, the Director of the Company, is a partner of Boughton Peterson Yang Anderson.

(b) Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement entered into between the Company and a fellow subsidiary,

the Company acquired 49.9% equity interest in an associated company, Furama International

Hoteliers Limited together with the relevant portion of the shareholders' loans at an aggregate

consideration of HK$105,000,000.

(c) During the year, the Company paid HK$13,063,000 to a fellow subsidiary for the additional

acquisition of investment properties.

(d) As further detailed in note 19 to the financial statements, LSD has given certain debt servicing

guarantees and interest payment guarantees to certain loan lenders in respect of the Relevant Loans

utilised by the Subsidiaries and Associated Companies, respectively. The outstanding balances of the

Relevant Loans of the Subsidiaries and Associated Companies at the balance sheet date were

HK$391,851,000 and HK$612,497,000, respectively.

(e) During the year, certain counter guarantee has been given by the Company to LSD in respect of certain

guarantee given by LSD on the interest payment for a bank loan facility granted to an associated

company. At the balance sheet date, the bank loan utilised by the associated company attributable to

the Group was HK$29,927,000.

(f) As further detailed in note 31(b), pursuant to an agreement entered into by Lai Sun Hotels (B.V.I.)

Limited, LSD, Grand Hill Holdings Limited, LAM Kin Ngok, Peter and Glynhill International Limited

in respect of the acquisition of Heathfield Limited, LSD and LAM Kin Ngok, Peter have given an

indemnity to the Group against all liabilities, losses, proceedings and claims arising from or in

consequence of the litigation concerning the interest purchased.

3. T U R N O V E R

Turnover principally comprises hotel and restaurant operating income, hotel management fees and

guaranteed rental income on investment properties as set out below.

Group

1998 1997

HK$'000 HK$'000

Hotel and restaurant operations 318,999 344,610

Hotel management fee income 34,169 60,484

Guaranteed rental income on investment properties 16,053 Ð

369,221 405,094
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4. O P E R A T I N G P R O F I T / ( L O S S ) B E F O R E E X C E P T I O N A L I T E M S

Group

1998 1997

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

This is arrived at after crediting:

Interest income from:

Bank deposits 12,146 8,446

Loans 1,202 1,486

Guaranteed returns on investment properties 13 46,792 46,272

Compensation on investments in subsidiaries 19 29,893 25,473

Gross rental income 28,477 11,373

Less: outgoings (3,577) Ð

Net rental income 24,900 11,373

and after charging:

Interest on bank loans, overdrafts and other borrowings wholly

repayable within five years 69,111 55,444

Less: Amounts capitalised in properties under development (11,532) (6,680)

Amounts capitalised in construction in progress Ð (1,245)

57,579 47,519

Provisions for diminution in values of short term investments 2,509 17,681

Loss/(profits) on sales of short term investments 8,439 (13,241)

10,948 4,440

Amortisation of goodwill on acquisition of:

Subsidiaries 2,383 2,383

Associated companies 2,447 6,369

Auditors' remuneration 1,676 1,736

Depreciation:

Owned fixed assets 33,266 24,859

Leased fixed assets 38 46
Cost of inventories sold and services provided relating to the hotel

management, and hotel and restaurant operations 205,992 192,884

Loss on disposal of fixed assets 239 1,025

Provision for loss on dissolution of an associated company 1,808 Ð

Provision for amount due from an associated company Ð 2,513

Operating lease rentals in respect of land and buildings 6,043 5,883

Foreign exchange losses, net 4,136 3,613
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5. E X C E P T I O N A L I T E M S

Group

1998 1997

HK$'000 HK$'000

Provisions against the carrying values of properties under development to

net realisable values and losses on disposal of properties 61,365 34,492

Revaluation deficit on investment properties 28,247 Ð

Losses on investments in associated companies, net 25,466 Ð

Provision for diminution in value on goodwill (note 16) 23,219 Ð

Provision for bad and doubtful debts 5,017 Ð

143,314 34,492

6. D I R E C T O R S ' A N D E M P L O Y E E S ' E M O L U M E N T S

(a) Directors' emoluments

Group

1998 1997

HK$'000 HK$'000

Basic salaries, bonuses, housing and other allowances,

and benefits in kind 30,517 13,414

No fees were paid to any directors during the year (1997 : Nil). Directors' emoluments of HK$112,658

(1997 : HK$80,000) were paid to two (1997 : one) independent non-executive directors during the year.

The number of directors whose emoluments fell within designated bands are as follows:

Group

Number of directors

1998 1997

HK$Nil ± HK$1,000,000 12 13

HK$1,000,001 ± HK$1,500,000 0 1

HK$1,500,001 ± HK$2,000,000 1 1

HK$4,000,001 ± HK$4,500,000 1 0

HK$4,500,001 ± HK$5,000,000 0 1

HK$5,500,001 ± HK$6,000,000 0 1

HK$6,000,001 ± HK$6,500,000 1 0

HK$7,500,001 ± HK$8,000,000 1 0

HK$10,000,001 ± HK$10,500,000 1 0

17 17

There were no arrangements under which a director waived or agreed to waive any emoluments for the year.
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6. D I R E C T O R S ' A N D E M P L O Y E E S ' E M O L U M E N T S ( c o n t i n u e d )

(b) Employees' emoluments

The five highest paid employees during the year are the five (1997 : four) directors, details of whose

emoluments are set out above. The details of the emoluments of the remaining one non-director, highest

paid employee in 1997 are set out below.

Group

1998 1997

HK$'000 HK$'000

Basic salaries, housing and other allowances, and benefits in kind Ð 1,800

Bonuses paid and payable Ð 197

Ð 1,997

7. P E N S I O N C O S T S

Group

1998 1997

HK$'000 HK$'000

Pension scheme contributions 1,481 1,672

The Group's contributions for the year were reduced by HK$141,000 (1997 : HK$88,000) in respect of

forfeited contributions. At the balance sheet date, there were no forfeited contributions (1997 : Nil) available

to the Group to reduce its contributions to the pension scheme in future years.
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8. T A X A T I O N

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16% (1997 : 16.5%) on the estimated assessable

profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at

the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates, based on existing legislation,

interpretation and practices in respect thereof.

Group

1998 1997

HK$'000 HK$'000

Provision for taxation for the year:

Hong Kong Ð 452

Overseas 19,455 7,296

19,455 7,748

Prior year's over provisions Ð Hong Kong (2,797) Ð

16,658 7,748

Deferred taxation (note 20) (5,404) (2,323)

Overseas associated companies 2,449 10,684

Taxation charge for the year 13,703 16,109

Included in overseas tax provision for the year is a corporate tax provision of HK$17,342,000 (1997 :

HK$5,704,000) of Hotel 57 Corp. I, Inc., a subsidiary of the Group holding 50% interest in a partnership,

Hotel 57 L.L.C.. As a partner of Hotel 57 L.L.C., Hotel 57 Corp. I, Inc. is responsible for its attributable

portion of the United States Federal and State income tax of Hotel 57 L.L.C..

9. N E T P R O F I T / ( L O S S ) A T T R I B U T A B L E T O S H A R E H O L D E R S

The net profit attributable to shareholders dealt with in the financial statements of the Company during the

year is HK$61,077,000 (1997 : profit of HK$82,739,000).

The Group's share of aggregate net profits retained by the associated companies for the year amounted to

HK$59,398,000 (1997 : net profits of HK$44,357,000).

10. D I V I D E N D S

Group

1998 1997

HK$'000 HK$'000

Interim dividend paid of 1.0 Hong Kong cent

(1997 : 1.0 Hong Kong cent) per ordinary share 18,241 18,241

1997 final dividend of 1.5 Hong Kong cents per ordinary share Ð 27,362

18,241 45,603
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11. E A R N I N G S / ( L O S S ) P E R S H A R E

The calculation of earnings/(loss) per share is based on the net loss attributable to shareholders for the year

of HK$49,802,000 (1997 : profit of HK$110,148,000) and on the weighted average of 1,824,143,092

(1997 : 1,413,724,701) ordinary shares of the Company in issue during the year.

No diluted earnings per share is presented as the exercise of the warrants of the Company is anti-dilutive.

12. F I X E D A S S E T S

Group

31st December

1997

Transfer

from

properties

under

development

(note 14)

Transfer

from

investment

in Whistler

Mountain

Inn, Limited

Partnership

(note 31(b)) Additions Disposals

Re-

classification

Exchange

realignments

31st December

1998

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Cost:

Hotel properties 2,043,003 288,392 Ð 28,571 Ð Ð (20,688) 2,339,278

Medium term leasehold land and

buildings situated overseas 39,019 Ð Ð 557 (236) 374 13 39,727

Construction in progress 1,936 Ð Ð 444 Ð (466) Ð 1,914

Leasehold improvements 23,803 Ð 3,887 314 (3,019) Ð (626) 24,359

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 170,408 80,543 2,358 31,192 (2,837) 92 (846) 280,910

Motor vehicles 3,555 Ð Ð 1,905 (404) Ð 1 5,057

Computers 4,105 Ð Ð 5,074 (105) Ð Ð 9,074

2,285,829 368,935 6,245 68,057 (6,601) Ð (22,146) 2,700,319

Accumulated depreciation:

Medium term leasehold land and

buildings situated overseas 3,193 Ð Ð 1,167 (35) Ð 1 4,326

Leasehold improvements 13,483 Ð Ð 3,104 (1,563) Ð (98) 14,926

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 70,074 Ð Ð 27,362 (2,323) Ð (115) 94,998

Motor vehicles 2,161 Ð Ð 692 (256) Ð 1 2,598

Computers 1,861 Ð Ð 979 (93) Ð Ð 2,747

90,772 Ð Ð 33,304 (4,270) Ð (211) 119,595

Net book value 2,195,057 2,580,724

The net book value of assets held under finance leases included in the total amount of fixed assets as at 31st

December, 1998 amounted to HK$90,000 (1997 : HK$250,000). The depreciation charge for the year in

respect of such assets amounted to HK$38,000 (1997 : HK$46,000).

Certain land and buildings were pledged to banks to secure banking facilities.
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13. I N V E S T M E N T P R O P E R T I E S

Group

1998 1997

HK$'000 HK$'000

At beginning of year, at cost 479,919 Ð

Additions, at cost 31,328 479,919

Deficit on revaluation (28,247) Ð

At end of year, at valuation/cost 483,000 479,919

The investment properties are situated in Shanghai, the People's Republic of China (the `̀ PRC'') and are held

on a medium term lease. On 5th March, 1997, a sale and purchase agreement (the `̀ Agreement'') was entered

into between the Group through a wholly-owned subsidiary, Good Strategy Limited, and Tiger Hill Limited

(``Tiger Hill''), a subsidiary of Lai Sun Development Company Limited (`̀ LSD''), pursuant to which the Group

agreed to acquire, and Tiger Hill agreed, inter alia, to procure Shanghai Li Xing Real Estate Development

Co., Ltd (`̀ Li Xing''), a subsidiary of LSD and a fellow subsidiary of the Group, to enter into pre-sale

agreements between the Group and Li Xing for the sale of 181 serviced apartment units at the North Tower

of the Hong Kong Plaza (the `̀ Hong Kong Plaza Properties''), properties situated in Shanghai, the PRC, at a

total consideration of approximately HK$479,919,000. The construction of the investment properties was

completed in December 1997.

In connection with the Agreement, Li Xing granted to the Group a guaranteed rental return of 13%,

calculated based on the sale consideration, effective for two years commencing in the fourth calendar month

immediately following the month in which notice of occupation of Hong Kong Plaza Properties was issued

by Li Xing to the Group (the `̀ Rental Guarantee Date''). Tiger Hill also agreed to pay to the Group an amount

equivalent to 13% per annum on the consideration paid pursuant to the Agreement from the date next after

the completion date of Agreement up to and exclusive of the Rental Guarantee Date. The guaranteed rental

returns received and receivable from Li Xing for the year ended 31st December, 1998 were HK$16,053,000

(1997 : Nil). The guaranteed returns received from Tiger Hill for the year ended 31st December, 1998 were

HK$46,792,000 (1997 : HK$46,272,000).

At 31st July, 1998, the investment properties were valued by Chesterton Petty Limited, independent

chartered surveyors, on an open market existing use basis at HK$483,000,000. No valuation has been

performed as at 31st December, 1998. The Directors consider that the values of the investment properties at

the balance sheet date have not materially fluctuated since the last professional valuation.
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14. P R O P E R T I E S U N D E R D E V E L O P M E N T

Group

1998 1997

HK$'000 HK$'000

At beginning of year 563,230 398,716

Additions 236,276 184,379

Transfer to fixed assets (note 12) (368,935) Ð

Interest capitalised 11,532 6,680

Exchange realignments (20,979) (11,173)

Provisions for diminution in value (51,775) (15,372)

369,349 563,230

Balance classified as current assets (note 22) (369,349) Ð

At end of year Ð 563,230

The properties under development are held for sale at 31st December, 1998 and are situated in Canada.

Such properties, in the amount of HK$369,349,000 (1997 : HK$278,252,000), are charged as security for

available bank facilities amounting to approximately HK$316,071,000 (1997 : HK$341,731,000) of which

HK$179,330,000 (1997 : HK$68,169,000) was utilised at the balance sheet date.

Details of the properties under development are as follows:

Location

Group

effective

interest

Expected

completion

date

Stage of

construction Expected use Gross floor area

1300 West Georgia

Street, Vancouver,

British Columbia,

Canada

100% 1999 Construction

in progress

Commercial

and residential

for sale

The total site area is

4,819 square metres and

the total gross floor area

will be 29,846 square

metres.
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15. S U B S I D I A R I E S

Company

1998 1997

HK$'000 HK$'000

Unlisted shares, at cost 1,099,312 1,107,005

Amounts due from subsidiaries 2,584,390 2,884,737

3,683,702 3,991,742

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Name of company

Place of

incorporation or

registration/

place of

operations

Issued/

registered share

capital and class

of shares held

Effective % of

capital held by

Principal activitiesCompany Group

Brantwood Enterprises, Inc. British Virgin

Islands

US$10,000

Ordinary

Ð 99.99 Investment holding

Century International Hotels

Limited

Bahamas US$100

Ordinary

Ð 51 Investment holding

Century International Hotels

Limited

Samoa US$1,000,000

Ordinary

Ð 51 Hotel management

Century International Hotels

(Hong Kong) Limited

Hong Kong US$100,000

Ordinary

Ð 51 Hotel management

Chains Caravelle Hotel Joint

Venture Company Limited

The Socialist

Republic of

Vietnam

US$18,567,734

Legal capital*

Ð 26 Investment in and operation

of a hotel

Chains International Hotels

Management Limited

Hong Kong HK$3,000,000

Ordinary

Ð 51 Hotel management

Chains International Hotels

Management Pte Limited

Singapore S$100,000

Ordinary

Ð 51 Hotel management

Delta Asia Limited Cayman Islands US$70

Class A

Ð 51 Hotel management

Diamond String Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000

Ordinary

Ð 65 Investment in and operation

of a hotel

Glynhill International Limited Hong Kong HK$912,623,351

Ordinary

100 100 Investment holding

Good Strategy Limited British Virgin

Islands

US$1

Ordinary

100 100 Property investment
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15. S U B S I D I A R I E S ( c o n t i n u e d )

Name of company

Place of

incorporation or

registration/

place of

operations

Issued/

registered share

capital and class

of shares held

Effective % of

capital held by

Principal activitiesCompany Group

Heathfield Limited British Virgin

Islands/Canada

US$100

Ordinary

Ð 100 Investment in and operation

of a hotel

Hotel 57 Corp. I, Inc.** United States of

America

US$1

Ordinary

Ð 99.99 Investment holding

Kenjacky Limited British Virgin

Islands

US$100

Ordinary

100 100 Investment holding

Kingswood Shine Limited British Virgin

Islands

US$1

Ordinary

Ð 100 Investment holding

Lai Sun Holdings BV Netherlands DFL4,750,000

Ordinary

Ð 100 Investment holding

L.S.B.W. Hotel, Inc.** United States of

America

US$0.6

Ordinary

Ð 83.33 Investment holding

Milewood International Inc. British Virgin

Islands

US$100

Ordinary

99.99 99.99 Investment holding

Nassin Limited British Virgin

Islands/Canada

US$100

Ordinary

Ð 100 Property investment

Surearn Profits Limited British Virgin

Islands

US$1

Ordinary

100 100 Investment holding

* This subsidiary has no issued share capital and is formed under a joint venture contract.

** Audited by public accountants other than Ernst & Young.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally

affected the results of the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details

of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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16. G O O D W I L L

Group

1998 1997

HK$'000 HK$'000

Cost:

Balance at beginning of year 97,355 97,355

Provision for diminution in value (23,219) Ð

Balance at end of year 74,136 97,355

Accumulated amortisation:

Balance at beginning of year 10,481 8,098

Charge for the year 2,383 2,383

Balance at end of year 12,864 10,481

Carrying value at 31 December 61,272 86,874

As further detailed in note 34(b) to the financial statements, the Group disposed of its 51% interest in

Century International Hotels Limited (incorporated in the Commonwealth of the Bahamas) (``Century'') on

3rd February, 1999 at a consideration of HK$65,200,000. The estimated loss on the disposal after taking

into account the related unamortised goodwill thereon was HK$23,219,000. Accordingly, a provision for

this loss has been made against the goodwill arising on the acquisition of Century at the balance sheet date.

17. A S S O C I A T E D C O M P A N I E S

(a)

Group Company

1998 1997 1998 1997

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Share of net assets, other than goodwill 329,041 513,898 Ð Ð

Share of goodwill of associated companies 131,612 133,520 Ð Ð

Unlisted investment, at cost Ð Ð 3,947 Ð

Borrowings borne by LSD (note 19) 589,296 591,988 Ð Ð

Unamortised goodwill 13,403 215,038 Ð Ð

1,063,352 1,454,444 3,947 Ð

Amounts due from associated companies 15,718 16,117 Ð Ð

Loans to associated companies 124,225 76,532 101,063 Ð

Amounts due to associated companies (11,897) (13,554) Ð Ð

1,191,398 1,533,539 105,010 Ð

The balances with associated companies including the loans to associated companies are unsecured,

interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

31st December, 1998

Notes to Financial Statements

54



17. A S S O C I A T E D C O M P A N I E S ( c o n t i n u e d )

(b)

Group

1998 1997

HK$'000 HK$'000

Share of profits less losses of associated companies 61,847 61,347

Compensation received and receivable by the Group from LSD (note 19) 44,276 34,358

Attributable profits less losses related to associated companies 106,123 95,705

Details of the principal associated companies are as follows:

Name of company

Place of

incorporation/

registration

Class of

shares held

% of equity

attributable to

the Group Principal activities

B.W. Hotel L.L.C.*** United States of

America

Members'

interest*

25 Investment in and

operation of a hotel

Hotel 57 L.L.C.*** United States of

America

Members'

interest*

50 Investment in and

operation of a hotel

Furama International Hoteliers Ltd. British Virgin

Islands

Ordinary 49.9 Investment holding

Indochina Beach Hotel Joint Venture The Socialist

Republic of

Vietnam

Legal Capital** 31.2 Investment in and

operation of a hotel

Orwell Investments Pte Ltd.*** Singapore Ordinary 25 Investment in and

operation of a golf

course

* These companies have no issued share capital.

** This company has no issued share capital and is formed under a joint venture contract.

*** Audited by public accountants other than Ernst & Young.

The above table lists the associated companies of the Group which, in the opinion of the directors,

principally affected the results of the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To

give details of other associated companies would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.
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17. A S S O C I A T E D C O M P A N I E S ( c o n t i n u e d )

Included in the share of net assets of associated companies is the share of net assets of Hotel 57 L.L.C. and

B.W. Hotel L.L.C. which, in the opinion of the directors, are material to the content of the Group's financial

statements. Details of the net assets of and the results for these associated companies as at 31st December,

1998 and for the year then ended, after certain adjustments to conform with the Group's accounting

policies, are as follows:

1998 1997

Hotel 57 L.L.C. HK$'000 HK$'000

Goodwill 215,153 220,967

Deferred expenditure 4,941 6,018

Long term receivable 5,992 16,148

Fixed assets 1,385,926 1,371,380

Current assets 170,726 161,386

Current liabilities (79,662) (87,880)

Long term liabilities (1,014,090) (981,932)

688,986 706,087

Net assets attributable to the Group 344,493 353,044

Add: Borrowings borne by LSD (note 19) 458,493 459,021

Share of net assets by the Group 802,986 812,065

1998 1997

HK$'000 HK$'000

Turnover 763,888 674,890

Depreciation 21,258 1,404

Profit before taxation 126,666 90,999

Post-acquisition profit attributable to the Group for the year 63,333 42,411

Add: Compensation received and receivable by the Group from LSD (note 19) 34,554 26,897

Post-acquisition profit related to the associated company attributable to the

Group for the year 97,887 69,308
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17. A S S O C I A T E D C O M P A N I E S ( c o n t i n u e d )

1998 1997

B.W. Hotel L.L.C. HK$'000 HK$'000

Goodwill 80,120 83,993

Other long term assets 821 1,022

Fixed assets 941,971 738,315

Current assets 68,456 72,716

Current liabilities (82,233) (45,903)

Long term liabilities (615,183) (526,646)

393,952 323,497

Net assets attributable to the Group 118,185 97,049

Add: Borrowings borne by LSD (note 19) 130,803 132,967

Share of net assets by the Group 248,988 230,016

1998 1997

HK$'000 HK$'000

Turnover 240,120 239,531

Depreciation 17,196 16,063

Profit before taxation 8,615 178

Post-acquisition profit/(loss) attributable to the Group for the year 2,585 (789)

Add: Compensation received and receivable by the Group from LSD (note 19) 9,722 7,461

Post-acquisition profit related to the associated company attributable to the

Group for the year 12,307 6,672

31st December, 1998

LAI SUN HOTELS ANNUAL REPORT 1998

57



18. L O N G T E R M D E P O S I T S

Group

1998 1997

HK$'000 HK$'000

Deposits paid, at cost 10,000 83,622

Long term deposits represented deposits paid with respect to an investment in an associated company. The

prior year's deposits were made in respect of investments in an associated company which were disposed of

during the year.

19. D U E F R O M L A I S U N D E V E L O P M E N T C O M P A N Y L I M I T E D

Group

1998 1997

HK$'000 HK$'000

Due from Lai Sun Development Company Limited 382,377 382,690

In 1997, the Group acquired certain subsidiaries (the `̀ Subsidiaries'') and certain associated companies (the

`̀ Associated Companies'') from LSD. Under the terms of the acquisitions, by including HK$1,018,155,000 in

the consideration for the acquisitions, LSD agreed to reimburse the Group the principal payments of the

bank loans of the Subsidiaries and the Associated Companies attributable to the Group (the `̀ Relevant

Loans'') of the same amount. In addition, LSD agreed to compensate the Group for interest made on the

Relevant Loans as incurred. It has also been agreed that the guarantees given by LSD to the relevant lenders

under the respective loan facilities be continued to be assumed by LSD for so long as such facilities remain

outstanding.

Due from LSD at 31st December, 1998 comprises the principal portion of the Relevant Loans of the

Subsidiaries of HK$382,084,000 (1997 : HK$382,208,000) and compensation receivable on the related loan

interest charge of HK$293,000 (1997 : HK$482,000). Borrowings borne by LSD at 31st December, 1998 of

HK$589,296,000 (1997 : HK$591,988,000) (note 17) comprise the principal portion of the Relevant Loans

of the Associated Companies of HK$582,571,000 (1997 : HK$584,733,000) and compensation receivable

on the related loan interest charge of HK$6,725,000 (1997 : HK$7,255,000).

Compensations received and receivable during the year in respect of the Relevant Loans of the Subsidiaries

and the Associated Companies were HK$29,893,000 (1997 : HK$25,473,000) and HK$44,276,000 (1997 :

HK$34,358,000), respectively.

During the year, HK$1,935,000 (1997 : Nil) was reimbursed from LSD for the principal repayment of the

Relevant Loan of an Associated Company. No reimbursement was received from LSD for the principal

repayment of the Relevant Loan of a Subsidiary in current year (1997 : HK$50,747,000).
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20. D E F E R R E D T A X A S S E T S

The principal component of the net deferred tax assets recognised at the balance sheet date mainly

comprised capital allowances on fixed assets and certain accrued ground lease and interest expenses.

Group

1998 1997

HK$'000 HK$'000

At beginning of the year 2,470 Ð

Deferred tax credit (note 8) 5,404 2,323

Exchange realignment (1) 147

At end of the year 7,873 2,470

The principal components of the net deferred tax asset/(liability) position not recognised were as follows:

Group

1998 1997

HK$'000 HK$'000

Accelerated capital allowances on fixed assets 8,168 (2,528)

Tax losses available for carryforward 65,918 45,045

Others (14) (477)

74,072 42,040

21. L O N G T E R M R E C E I V A B L E

The balance represents the long term portion of receivable arising from the disposal of an associated

company in current year. The amount is receivable at various intervals within five years from the balance

sheet date.
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22. N E T C U R R E N T A S S E T S / ( L I A B I L I T I E S )

Group Company

1998 1997 1998 1997

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Current assets:

Cash and bank balances 281,853 259,174 111,778 36,206
Properties under development held

for sale 14 369,349 Ð Ð Ð

Short term investments 23 2,310 8,780 Ð Ð

Debtors and deposits 161,868 270,352 1,767 294
Due from Whistler Mountain Inn,

Limited Partnership 24 20,679 Ð Ð Ð

Due from a fellow subsidiary 25 8,319 Ð Ð Ð

Stocks 26 19,462 31,125 Ð Ð

863,840 569,431 113,545 36,500

Current liabilities:
Bank loans and other borrowings

due within one year 27 564,064 234,498 Ð 144,949

Creditors and accruals 150,877 160,944 4,527 1,037

Taxation 8,772 8,914 Ð Ð

Proposed final dividend Ð 27,362 Ð 27,362

723,713 431,718 4,527 173,348

Net current assets/(liabilities) 140,127 137,713 109,018 (136,848)

23. S H O R T T E R M I N V E S T M E N T S

Group

1998 1997

HK$'000 HK$'000

Listed investments in Hong Kong, at cost 4,819 26,461

Less: Provisions for diminution in value (2,509) (17,681)

2,310 8,780

Market value of listed investments 2,310 8,780
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24. D U E F R O M W H I S T L E R M O U N T A I N I N N , L I M I T E D P A R T N E R S H I P

The balance due represents the net realisable value of share of net assets, other than fixed assets, receivable

from the dissolution of the Whistler Mountain Inn, Limited Partnership (note 31(b)).

25. D U E F R O M A F E L L O W S U B S I D I A R Y

The balance represents guaranteed rental returns receivable on investment properties (note 13). The amount

due is unsecured, interest-free and has been settled subsequent to the balance sheet date.

26. S T O C K S

Group

1998 1997

HK$'000 HK$'000

Raw materials 9,622 16,591

Work in progress 231 1,141

Finished goods 9,609 13,393

19,462 31,125

27. B A N K L O A N S A N D O T H E R B O R R O W I N G S

Group Company

1998 1997 1998 1997

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Bank loans and overdrafts:

Secured 845,978 594,962 Ð Ð

Unsecured 21,523 339,707 Ð 144,949

Other borrowings, secured 1,590 4,827 Ð Ð

869,091 939,496 Ð 144,949

Portion due within one year classified as current

liabilities (564,064) (234,498) Ð (144,949)

Long term portion 305,027 704,998 Ð Ð

The long term portion of bank loans and other

borrowings are repayable within:

More than one year, but not exceeding two years 80,515 399,802 Ð Ð
More than two years, but not exceeding five

years 224,512 305,196 Ð Ð

305,027 704,998 Ð Ð

The secured bank loans and overdrafts are secured by various debentures totalling HK$150,510,000 (1997 :

HK$162,729,000) and fixed charges on certain properties of the Group.

The secured other borrowings are secured by bank deposits of approximately HK$2,229,000 (1997 :

HK$5,259,000) included in cash and bank balances and are wholly repayable within one year. Interest is

charged at 5.93% (1997 : 5.93%) per annum.
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28. S H A R E C A P I T A L

1998 1997

Number of

shares

Nominal

value

Number of

shares

Nominal

value

'000 HK$'000 '000 HK$'000

Authorised:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 3,000,000 300,000 3,000,000 300,000

Issued and fully paid:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 1,824,143 182,414 1,824,143 182,414

Warrants

During the year, no warrants were exercised by the warrantholders.

The exercise in full of the outstanding warrants at the balance sheet date would, under the present capital

structure of the Company, result in the issue of 214,952,140 new ordinary shares with gross issue proceeds

of HK$472,894,708. Any unexercised warrants will expire on 30th April, 1999.

29. R E S E R V E S

Group
Share

premium

account

Contributed

surplus

Capital

reserve

General

reserve

Retained profits/

(accumulated

losses) Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

At beginning of year 2,789,957 891,289 160,533 598 (43,549) 3,798,828

Amount released from disposal of

associated companies Ð Ð (23,855) Ð 18,850 (5,005)

Arising on acquisitions of:

Additional interests in

subsidiaries Ð Ð (4,553) Ð Ð (4,553)

Associated companies Ð Ð (36,323) Ð Ð (36,323)

Exchange realignments Ð Ð Ð Ð (27,824) (27,824)

Loss for the year Ð Ð Ð Ð (49,802) (49,802)

Interim dividend Ð note 10 Ð Ð Ð Ð (18,241) (18,241)

At 31st December, 1998 2,789,957 891,289 95,802 598 (120,566) 3,657,080

Reserves retained by:

Company and subsidiaries 2,789,957 891,289 95,802 Ð (220,893) 3,556,155

Associated companies Ð Ð Ð 598 100,327 100,925

2,789,957 891,289 95,802 598 (120,566) 3,657,080

Included in the debit balance of accumulated losses as at 31 December 1998 are accumulated debit balances

in respect of exchange realignments amounting to HK$120,995,000 (1997 : HK$112,021,000).

The Group's contributed surplus represents the excess value of the shares acquired over the nominal value

of the Company's shares issued in exchange during the Group reorganisation in November 1996.
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29. R E S E R V E S ( c o n t i n u e d )

Company

Share

premium

account

Contributed

surplus

Retained

profits Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

At beginning of year 2,789,957 845,455 37,068 3,672,480

Profit for the year Ð Ð 61,077 61,077

Interim dividend (note 10) Ð Ð (18,241) (18,241)

At 31st December, 1998 2,789,957 845,455 79,904 3,715,316

The Company's contributed surplus represents the excess of the fair value of the subsidiary's shares

acquired, pursuant to the Group reorganisation in November 1996, over the nominal value of the

Company's shares issued in exchange. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),

distribution may be made out of the contributed surplus in certain circumstances.
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30. N O T E S T O T H E C O N S O L I D A T E D C A S H F L O W S T A T E M E N T

(a) Reconciliation of operating profit/(loss) to net cash inflow from operating activities

Group

1998 1997

HK$'000 HK$'000

Operating profit/(loss) (167,254) 50,642

Interest expense, net 57,579 47,519

Interest income (13,348) (9,932)

Depreciation 33,304 24,905

Provision for loss on dissolution of an associated company 1,808 Ð

Loss on disposal of fixed assets 239 1,025

Amortisation of goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries and associated

companies 4,830 8,752

Provision against amount due from an associated company Ð 2,513

Provisions for diminutions in values of short term investments 2,509 17,681

Loss/(profit) on disposal of short term investments 8,439 (13,241)

Provisions against the carrying values of properties under development to net

realisable values and losses on disposal of properties 61,365 34,492

Revaluation deficit on investment properties 28,247 Ð

Losses on investments in associated companies, net 25,466 Ð

Provision for diminution in value on goodwill (note 16) 23,219 Ð

Provision for bad and doubtful debts 5,017 Ð

Compensation on investments in subsidiaries (29,893) (25,473)

Increase in net amounts due from associated companies (11,730) (3,454)

Decrease/(increase) in debtors and deposits 90,945 (18,379)

Increase in amount due from a fellow subsidiary (8,319) Ð

Decrease in stocks 10,874 7,089

Increase/(decrease) in creditors and accruals (5,313) 5,048

Net cash inflow from operating activities 117,984 129,187
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30. N O T E S T O T H E C O N S O L I D A T E D C A S H F L O W S T A T E M E N T ( c o n t i n u e d )

(b) Analysis of changes in financing during the year

Share capital

(including

premium)

Bank loans,

deposits

pledged, and

other

borrowings*

Due from

LSD

Minority

interests

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Balance at 1st January, 1997 22,816 214,617 Ð 131,695

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing 1,162,933 (9,721) 50,747 113,522

Issue of new shares for partial settlement of

consideration for acquisitions of certain

subsidiaries and associated companies 1,701,810 Ð Ð Ð

Issue of new shares to settle the amount due

to a minority shareholder 84,812 Ð Ð Ð

Share of net profit for the year Ð Ð Ð 20,090

Capital injection in the form of fixed assets Ð Ð Ð 8,608

Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries Ð 582,777 (433,053) 508,251

Subsidiary excluded from consolidation on

loss of control Ð Ð Ð (10,101)

Share of discount on acquisition of an

associated company Ð Ð Ð 7,072

Increase in amount due from LSD Ð Ð (482) Ð

Exchange realignments Ð (8,769) 98 (263)

Balance at 31st December, 1997 and

1st January, 1998 2,972,371 778,904 (382,690) 778,874

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing Ð 75,172 Ð (4,354)

Share of net loss for the year Ð Ð Ð (25,032)

Additional investment in subsidiaries Ð Ð Ð 2,924

Dividend paid to minority shareholders Ð Ð Ð (6,762)

Compensation on investments in subsidiaries Ð Ð (29,893) Ð

Compensation received on investments in

subsidiaries Ð Ð 30,082 Ð

Exchange realignments Ð (10,608) 124 (2,309)

Balance at 31st December, 1998 2,972,371 843,468 (382,377) 743,341

* excluding bank loans with less than three months to maturity.
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30. N O T E S T O T H E C O N S O L I D A T E D C A S H F L O W S T A T E M E N T ( c o n t i n u e d )

(c) Reconciliation of the balance of cash and cash equivalents in respect of short term bank loans

1998 1997

HK$'000 HK$'000

Short term bank loans 562,474 231,280

Bank loans with over three months to maturity (539,080) (75,947)

Bank loans with less than three months to maturity 23,394 155,333

(d) Acquisition of subsidiaries

1998 1997

HK$'000 HK$'000

Net assets acquired:

Fixed assets Ð 1,800,800

Associated companies Ð 1,054,356

Due from LSD Ð 433,053

Cash and bank balances Ð 60,078

Debtors and deposits Ð 38,513

Stocks Ð 2,351

Deferred tax assets Ð 147

Bank overdrafts Ð Ð

Creditors and accruals Ð (56,280)

Current portion of long term bank loan Ð (39,523)

Taxation Ð (2,800)

Long term bank loan, secured Ð (543,254)

Minority interests Ð (508,251)

Ð 2,239,190

Discount on acquisition Ð (137,765)

Ð 2,101,425

Satisfied by:

Cash Ð 399,615

Issue of new shares Ð 1,701,810

Ð 2,101,425
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30. N O T E S T O T H E C O N S O L I D A T E D C A S H F L O W S T A T E M E N T ( c o n t i n u e d )

(d) Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued)

In 1997, the acquired subsidiaries contributed HK$64,922,000 to the Group's net operating cashflows,

contributed HK$26,028,000 in respect of the net returns on investments and servicing of finance, absorbed

HK$1,496,000 in respect of taxation, utilised HK$71,696,000 in respect of investing activities and

contributed HK$34,206,000 in respect of financing activities.

Analysis of net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries:

1998 1997

HK$'000 HK$'000

Cash paid Ð (399,615)

Cash and bank balances acquired Ð 60,078

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the acquisition of

subsidiaries Ð (339,537)

(e) Subsidiary excluded from consolidation

1998 1997

HK$'000 HK$'000

Net assets excluded from consolidation:

Fixed assets Ð 7,923

Cash Ð 20,633

Debtors and deposits Ð 4,553

Stocks Ð 2,924

Creditors and accruals Ð (6,021)

Minority interests Ð (10,101)

Ð 19,911

Satisfied by:

Reclassification to interests in associated companies Ð 19,911

In 1997, the subsidiary excluded from consolidation contributed HK$71,000 to the Group's net operating

cashflows, contributed HK$331,000 in respect of the net returns on investments and servicing of finance

and utilised HK$2,631,000 in respect of investing activities.
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30. N O T E S T O T H E C O N S O L I D A T E D C A S H F L O W S T A T E M E N T ( c o n t i n u e d )

(e) Subsidiary excluded from consolidation (continued)

Analysis of net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of exclusion of the subsidiary from

consolidation:

1998 1997

HK$'000 HK$'000

Cash balances being excluded from consolidation and the net outflow of cash

and cash equivalents in respect of exclusion of the subsidiary from

consolidation Ð 20,633

(f) Exceptional items

1998 1997

HK$'000 HK$'000

The net cash inflow attributable to the Group for the year in respect of:

Disposal of properties 28,834 Ð

Disposal of associated companies, net 440,598 Ð

469,432 Ð

31. L I T I G A T I O N

(a) An action was commenced in December 1998 against certain Group companies and the other

shareholders of Hotel 57 L.L.C. (the `̀ Shareholders'') by Art 57 Properties, Inc. (the ``Plaintiff'') in the

Supreme Court of the state of New York (the `̀ New York Court''), alleging breach of contract, fraud and

promissory estoppel. The Plaintiff's case was based on a claim that it had made a down payment of

US$2 million and signed a letter of intent to purchase the Four Seasons Hotel, New York (`̀ FSNY''). By

way of relief, the Plaintiff sought specific performance requiring the sale of shares (the ``Shares'') in the

ownership entities, the effect of which would convey beneficial ownership of the FSNY to the Plaintiff

or, in the alternative, damages in an amount of not less than US$80 million. Simultaneously, the

Plaintiff filed a motion for a preliminary injunction seeking to prevent the sale of the Shares, or to

attach the proceeds from any sale of the Shares pending final disposition of the case.

In early 1999, the Plaintiff applied to discontinue the New York proceedings and commenced a

separate suit in the United States District Court in Texas (the `̀ Texas Court'') against Milewood

International Inc. (``Milewood''), a 99.99% owned subsidiary of the Group, the other shareholders of

FSNY and 57 BB Property, L.L.C., the prospective purchaser of FSNY, for similar claims as above.

In February 1999, the New York Court denied the motion to discontinue the New York proceedings

and dismissed all claims against the companies of the Group, except for Milewood and certain

shareholders of FSNY. In March 1999, the Texas Court dismissed all claims against all defendants. An

appeal has been filed by the Plaintiff.
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31. L I T I G A T I O N ( c o n t i n u e d )

Having regard to advice taken from legal counsel, the directors consider that the Group has

substantive defences to the current litigation such that they consider the remaining claims should be

dismissed and that the litigation should have no material adverse effect on the Group.

See note 34(a) for further details surrounding the disposal of FSNY.

(b) The Group has been involved in litigation in the Canadian Court in respect of an allegation by certain

limited partners (the `̀ Plaintiff'') of the Whistler Mountain Inn, Limited Partnership (the `̀ Partnership'')

that Village Gate Resorts Limited, a subsidiary of the Group as the general partner of the Partnership,

was in material default of the limited partnership agreement. The Plaintiff sought to have the

Partnership dissolved.

Under a judgment rendered by the Court of Appeal of British Columbia in November 1997, the court

allowed the meeting to vote on the dissolution of the Partnership to proceed. On 14th November,

1997, the limited partners of the Partnership passed an extraordinary resolution to dissolve the

Partnership. The Partnership was put under receivership from 15th November, 1997. During the

period, the Group's investment in the Partnership was accounted for using the equity method of

accounting. The Partnership was effectively dissolved on 31st December, 1998. The Group expects to

receive its share of the Partnership's fixed assets being HK$6,245,000 (note 12) and a distribution of

the remaining net assets of HK$20,679,000 (note 24) from the dissolution of the Partnership.

In January 1999, the Supreme Court of British Columbia awarded damages plus interest amounting to

C$3,385,000 to the limited partners of the Partnership in respect of injunctions of dissolution of the

Partnership previously granted. The award represents the estimated lost income to the limited partners

for the period from 16th March, 1989 to 14th November, 1997. The Plaintiffs are entitled to awarded

damages of approximately C$1,538,000 of the foregoing amount plus interest. The Directors consider

that the Court's decision was unfair, and an appeal has been filed against the Court's decision.

The Group has received from LSD and Mr. Peter LAM, a Director of the Company, an indemnity

against any loss which the Group might suffer in the event that the Plaintiffs are successful in pursuing

their claims. Accordingly, no provision in respect thereof has been made in the financial statements.
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32. C O M M I T M E N T S

Commitments not provided for in the financial statements at the balance sheet date were as follows:

Group Company

1998 1997 1998 1997

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Capital commitments:

Contracted but not provided for 90,789 423,744 Ð Ð

Authorised but not contracted for Ð 53,429 Ð Ð

90,789 477,173 Ð Ð

Annual commitments payable in the

following year under non-cancellable

operating leases in respect of land

and buildings expiring within:

One year 1,023 Ð Ð Ð

Two to five years, inclusive 256 4,349 Ð 402

After five years 1,541 1,667 Ð Ð

2,820 6,016 Ð 402

33. C O N T I N G E N T L I A B I L I T I E S

Contingent liabilities not provided for in the financial statements at the balance sheet date were as follows:

Group Company

1998 1997 1998 1997

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Guarantees given to third parties in

connection with restaurant

operations 1,149 1,631 Ð Ð

Guarantee given to a third party in

connection with a property under

development for resale 941 1,017 Ð Ð

Guarantee given to a bank in

connection with a bank facility

granted to the subsidiary Ð Ð 179,330 68,169

2,090 2,648 179,330 68,169

In addition, the Company has given counter guarantee to LSD in respect of certain guarantee on the interest

payment given by LSD in respect of an attributable share of bank loan amounting to HK$29,927,000 (1997 :

Nil) for an associated company.
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34. S U B S E Q U E N T E V E N T S

(a) On 2nd February, 1999, a conditional sale and purchase agreement was entered into between

Milewood International Inc., a 99.99% subsidiary of the Group, certain other vendors (together, the

`̀ Vendors'') and 57 BB Property, L.L.C. (the `̀ Purchaser''), pursuant to which the Vendors disposed of

the entire issued share capital of Brantwood Enterprises Inc. and certain other companies, together

holding a 100% of the Four Seasons Hotel, New York to the Purchaser for a cash consideration of

US$275,000,000, subject to certain adjustments (the ``Disposal''). The Disposal was completed in

March 1999. The estimated pre-tax gain on the Disposal is HK$266,000,000.

(b) Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement dated 3rd February, 1999 (the `̀ Agreement''), the Group

acquired the remaining 49% interest in Glynhill Hotels and Resorts Limited and Delta Asia Limited

from Dove Corporation (`̀ Dove''), while simultaneously, disposing of its 51% interest in Century

International Hotels Limited (``Century'') to Dove. The consideration payable by the Group for the

acquisitions was HK$39,200,000, whereas the consideration for the disposal of Century was

HK$65,200,000. The estimated loss on the disposal of 51% interest in Century is HK$23,219,000.

The transactions constituted connected transactions of the Company under the Rules Governing the

Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the `̀ Listing Rules''). The

transactions were completed in February 1999.

(c) On 11th February, 1999, a conditional agreement was entered into between the Company and its

indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, Golden Pool Enterprise Limited (``GPEL''), and Lai Sun

Development Company Limited (`̀ LSD'') and its indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, Furama Hotel

Enterprises Limited (``FHEL''), in relation to the redevelopment of the Furama Hotel into a composite

retail, hotel and office building (the `̀ New Building'') and the purchase by GPEL of the hotel portions

of the New Building (`̀ Hotel Portions'').

The total consideration for the purchase of the Hotel Portions and its possible fitting out by LSD is

HK$2,150 million, which includes the consideration for the purchase of the Hotel Portions of

HK$1,900 million. Regarding the settlement of the consideration of HK$1,900 million, approximately

HK$965 million is payable by way of deposit and would be satisfied in full by the Group releasing LSD

from its obligation of reimbursing the Relevant Loans as set out in further detail in note 19 to the

financial statements. The remaining balance of the consideration, approximately HK$935 million,

would be payable upon the completion of the acquisition which is expected to take place in or around

May 2004. The manner of payment of the consideration for the fitting out works of HK$250 million

will be determined between LSD and GPEL upon LSD's acceptance to carry out such works.

The above acquisition constituted a major and connected transaction of the Company under the

Listing Rules and required approval from independent shareholders. On 22nd March, 1999, pursuant

to a resolution passed in a special general meeting, the above transaction was approved by the

independent shareholders.

(d) On 22nd February, 1999, the Company granted 10,000,000 share options in favour of the executive

director, Mr. LIU Ngai Wing. The options entitle him to subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company

of HK$0.10 each at an exercise price of HK$0.5 each. No options may be exercised within six months

after the date of grant and the options are exercisable within two years thereafter.

31st December, 1998
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35. C O M P A R A T I V E A M O U N T S

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current year presentation.

36. U L T I M A T E H O L D I N G C O M P A N Y

In the opinion of the Directors, the holding company and ultimate holding company is Lai Sun Development

Company Limited and Lai Sun Garment (International) Limited, respectively, both of which are

incorporated in Hong Kong.

37. A P P R O V A L O F T H E F I N A N C I A L S T A T E M E N T S

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 29th April, 1999.

31st December, 1998
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of the Members of the Company will be held
at Coral Room II, 3/F., Furama Hotel, Hong Kong, 1 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong on Monday, 14th
June, 1999 at 9 : 30 a.m. for the following purposes:

1. To receive and consider the audited Financial Statements and the Reports of the Directors and of the
Auditors for the year ended 31st December, 1998.

2. To re-elect Directors and to fix their remuneration.

3. To appoint Auditors and to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration.

4. As special businesses, to consider and, if thought fit, pass with or without amendments, the following
resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions:

(A) ``THAT:

(a) subject to paragraph (b) of this Resolution, the exercise by the Directors during the
Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of all the powers of the Company to purchase
shares of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the ``Stock Exchange'') or on any other stock exchange on which the shares
of the Company may be listed and recognised by the Securities and Futures Commission
and the Stock Exchange for this purpose, subject to and in accordance with all applicable
laws and the requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange or any other stock exchange as amended from time to time, be and is hereby
generally and unconditionally approved;

(b) the aggregate nominal amount of the shares to be purchased pursuant to the approval in
paragraph (a) above shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal amount of the share
capital of the Company in issue as at the date of this Resolution, and the said approval shall
be limited accordingly; and

(c) for the purposes of this Resolution, `̀ Relevant Period'' means the period from the passing of
this Resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

i) the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company;

ii) the revocation or variation of the authority given under this Resolution by an
ordinary resolution of the Members of the Company in general meeting; or

iii) the expiration of the period within which the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company is required by law or the Bye-laws of the Company to be held.''

(B) ``THAT:

(a) subject to paragraph (c) of this Resolution, the exercise by the Directors during the
Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of all the powers of the Company to issue, allot
and deal with additional shares of the Company, and to make or grant offers, agreements
and options (including warrants, bonds, debentures, notes and any securities which carry
rights to subscribe for or are convertible into shares of the Company) which would or
might require the exercise of such power be and is hereby generally and unconditionally
approved;

(b) the approval in paragraph (a) of this Resolution shall authorise the Directors during the
Relevant Period to make or grant offers, agreements and options (including warrants,
bonds, debentures, notes and any securities which carry rights to subscribe for or are
convertible into shares of the Company) which would or might require the exercise of such
power after the end of the Relevant Period;
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(c) the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or agreed conditionally or
unconditionally to be allotted (whether pursuant to an option or otherwise) and issued by
the Directors pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) of this Resolution, otherwise than
pursuant to (i) a Rights Issue (as hereinafter defined); or (ii) an issue of shares of the
Company as scrip dividends pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company from time to time;
or (iii) an issue of shares of the Company under any option scheme or similar arrangement
for the grant or issue to employees of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries of shares
of the Company or rights to acquire shares of the Company, shall not exceed 20% of the
aggregate nominal amount of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this
Resolution, and the said approval shall be limited accordingly; and

(d) for the purposes of this Resolution,

``Relevant Period'' shall have the meaning assigned to it under Ordinary Resolution No.
4(A) set out in the Notice convening this Meeting.

``Rights Issue'' means an offer of shares of the Company open for a period fixed by the
Directors to the holders of shares whose names appear on the Register of Members of the
Company on a fixed record date in proportion to their then holdings of such shares as at
that date (subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the Directors may deem
necessary or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements or having regard to any
restrictions or obligations under the laws of, or the requirements of any recognised
regulatory body or any stock exchange in, any territory applicable to the Company).''

(C) ``THAT, subject to the passing of Ordinary Resolutions No. 4(A) and No. 4(B) in the Notice
convening the Meeting, the general mandate granted to the Directors and for the time being in
force to exercise the powers of the Company to allot shares and to make or grant offers,
agreements and options which might require the exercise of such powers be and is hereby
extended by addition thereto of an amount representing the aggregate nominal amount of shares
in the capital of the Company which has been purchased by the Company since the granting of
such general mandate pursuant to the exercise by the Directors of the powers of the Company to
purchase such shares, provided that such amount shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal
amount of the share capital of the Company in issue as at the date of this Resolution.''

By Order of the Board
Yeung Kam Hoi

Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 29th April, 1999

Notes:

(a) A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint one or more
proxies to attend and vote in his stead in accordance with the Company's Bye-laws. A proxy need not
be a Member of the Company.

(b) A form of proxy, together with the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is
signed, or a notarially certified copy thereof, must be deposited with the Company's Registrars in Hong
Kong, Tengis Limited, at 1601 Hutchison House, 10 Harcourt Road, Central, Hong Kong not less than
48 hours before the time appointed for holding the Annual General Meeting or adjourned meeting (as
the case may be) and in default the proxy shall not be treated as valid. Completion and return of the
form of proxy shall not preclude Members from attending and voting in person at the Annual General
Meeting or at any adjourned meeting should they so wish.

(c) A circular containing details regarding Ordinary Resolutions No. 4(A) to No. 4(C) above will be sent to
Members of the Company together with the 1998 Annual Report.
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